
1 
 

 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Agenda 
January 22, 2013 

7:00 P.M. – Regular Meeting 
Municipal Meeting Room 

Brunswick Station 
16 Station Avenue 

Pledge of Allegiance  
 
Roll Call  
 
Public Comment:  
 
Correspondence:   
 
Adjustments to the Agenda:  
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
(a) Financial Update  
 
(b) Report on the preliminary estimated effect of the Governor’s budget on the Town  
 
(c) Council Committee Updates 
 
(d) Report on the hiring of a lobbying team to represent the Town in legislative issues 
 
(e) Update on public benefit conveyances  
 
(f) Update on railroad quiet zones  
 
(g) Reminder on renewal of dog licenses 
 
(h) Announcement of CIP workshop for February 7, 2013 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
3. The Town Council will hold a public hearing on the following Alcoholic Beverage 

license, and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager) 
 

Full-Time Spirituous, Vinous & Malt 
Little Saigon LLC of Maine       Cuong Ly 
D/B/A: Little Saigon Resturant 
44 Maine Street 

HEARING/ACTION 
 



2 
 

4. The Town Council will hold a public hearing on the following Special Amusement 
license, and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager) 
 
Special Amusement 
Brunswick Lodge of Elks #2043     Angela Brackett 
D/B/A: Brunswick Lodge of Elks 
179 Park Row 

HEARING/ACTION 
 
5. The Town Council will hear public comments on parking ordinance changes in the 

downtown area, as recommended by the Downtown Master Plan Implementation 
Committee’s Parking Subcommittee, and will take any appropriate action.  (Councilor 
Knight and Councilor Perreault) 

HEARING/ACTION 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
6. The Town Council will discuss the nominee selection process for the MRRA Board, 

and will determine if any action is necessary.  (Chair Wilson and Councilor Knight) 
 
7. The Town Council will appoint Council Representatives to the following: 

 Trust Fund Advisory Committee (previously Pols)  
 Midcoast Council of Governments -5 Councilors needed  
 Union Negotiating Committee -1 Councilor needed for AFSCME (previously 

Perreault), Public Works(previously Wilson)  
 Citizens Initiative Clarity Board (previously Pols and Knight) 

 
8. The Town Council will consider appointments to the Town’s Boards and Committees, 

and will take any appropriate action. (Appointments Committee-2012) 
ACTION 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

(a) Approved of the Minutes of January 7, 2013 
(b) Approval of the Minutes of December 17, 2012 
(c) Appointment of Voter Registration Appeals Board 
(d) Appointment of Fran Smith as the Town’s Public Access Officer 
(e) Approval of a tax abatement for American Ballroom Dance Academy 
(f) Approval of Quitclaim Deed for property known as Map 051 Lot 001 Sub 000 Typ 

131 
 
Executive session – Consultation with legal counsel M.R.S.A. per §405(6)(E) 
 

INDIVIDUALS NEEDING AUXILIARY AIDS FOR EFFECTIVE 
COMMUNICATION SHOULD CONTACT  

THE TOWN MANAGER’S OFFICE AT 725-6659 (TDD 725-5521) 



3 
 

Brunswick Town Council 
Agenda  

January 22, 2013 
Council Notes and Suggested Motions 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
(a) Financial Update:  Manager Brown will update the Council on the Town’s financial 

picture halfway through the fiscal year.  Copies of financial reports will be posted 
online, but are not included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:  No motion is required. 

 
(b) Report on the preliminary estimated effect of the Governor’s budget on the Town:  This 

item is to inform the Council and the public on the estimated cuts in funding to the 
Town.  A copy of a memo from John Eldridge is included in your packet.  

 
Suggested Motion:  No motion is required. 

 
(c) Council Committee Updates:   Councilors with information on the Committees they are 

involved with will share information with the Council and public. 
 

Suggested Motion:  No motion is required. 
 
(d) Report on the hiring of a lobbying team to represent the Town in legislative issues: This 

item is to inform the public that the Town has hired the law firm of Preti Flaherty  to 
represent the Town on the proposed Kestrel bill and other pending legislation that could 
impact the town. 

 
Suggested Motion:  No motion is required. 

 
(e) Update on public benefit conveyances: This item is to update the Council and public on 

the public benefit conveyances.  Copies of a memo from Denise Clavette regarding this 
and a letter from Manager Brown to the National Park Services are included in your 
packet.  

 
Suggested Motion:  No motion is required. 

 
(f) Update on railroad quiet zones:  This item is to update the Council and public on the 

status of the proposed quiet zones. 
 

Suggested Motion:  No motion is required. 
 
(g) Reminder on renewal of dog licenses:  This item is to remind the public that 2013 dog 

licenses are available and licenses must be renewed by January 31, 2013, in order to 
avoid the $25 late fee.   

 
Suggested Motion:  No motion is required. 



4 
 

 
(h) Announcement of CIP workshop for February 7, 2013:  This item will inform the public 

of this upcoming workshop.  
 

Suggested Motion:  No motion is required. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
3. This item is the required public hearing on a new Alcoholic Beverage license for Little 

Saigon, located at 44 Maine Street (former location of Clementine’s).  Copies of the 
public hearing notice and application are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:   
Motion to approve the Alcoholic Beverage license for Little Saigon, located at 44 
Maine Street. 

 
4. This item is the required public hearing on a Special Amusement license renewal for the 

Brunswick Lodge of Elks, located at 179 Park Row.  They will be having D.J.’s and 
bands.  Copies of the public hearing notice and application are included in your packet. 
 
Suggested Motion:   
Motion to approve the Special Amusement license for Brunswick Lodge of Elks, 
located at 179 Park Row. 

 
5. This item, sponsored by Councilor Knight and Councilor Perreault, is the required 

public hearing on parking ordinance changes in the downtown area, as recommended by 
the Downtown Master Plan Implementation Committee’s Parking Subcommittee. The 
original proposal included a change to the all-day parking in the Municipal Parking lot 
under section 15-77(c). Since it has been determined that this is not needed, staff is 
recommending it be removed. Copies of a memo from Manager Brown regarding the 
Municipal Parking lot, a summary of changes from Captain Waltz, the draft changes, 
and a parking fine comparison are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:   
Motion to adopt parking ordinance changes in the downtown area, as recommended by 
the Downtown Master Plan Implementation Committee’s Parking Subcommittee with 
the above amendments. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
6. This item is being sponsored by Chair Wilson and Councilor Knight.  It will lay out the 

process for the Council to solicit and nominate interested citizens whose names will be 
forwarded to the Governor’s office for his consideration for appointment to the MRRA 
Board.  A copy of a letter from Chair Wilson to the Governor regarding the matter is 
included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:  No motion is required. 



5 
 

7. This item is for the Council Chair to make additional Council appointments to various 
committees.  

 
Suggested Motion:  No motion is required. 

 
8. At this time the Appointments Committee will make nominations to fill vacancies on 

Town Boards and Committees.  A copy of Mr. Bouchard’s application for the Water 
District is included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion: 
Nominations will be made, with no seconds required, and the Council will then vote on 
the nominations. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

(a) Approved of the Minutes of January 7, 2013:  A copy of the minutes is included in 
your packet. 

(b) Approval of the Minutes of December 17, 2012. A copy of the minutes is included 
in your packet. 

(c) Appointment of Voter Registration Appeals Board:  State law requires that the 
Council appoint three members to the Voter Registration Appeals Board.  This 
board hears appeals for voters regarding decisions of the Registrar of Voters.  (It has 
yet to meet in Brunswick, but is still required to exist.)  The make-up of the 
committee is as follows: a person nominated by the municipal Democratic Party, 
one nominated by the municipal Republican Party, and a final person nominated by 
the Town Clerk.  The following is the slate for your consideration – Andy Cashman 
as the Democratic member and Jonathan Crimmins as the Republican member.  
Michael Feldman’s term as the third member does not expire until September 2013. 

(d) Appointment of Fran Smith as the Town’s Public Access Officer:  Under S.P. 456 
“An Act To Amend the Laws Governing Freedom of Access”  passed by the 125th 
Legislature the Town is required to designate an existing staff member to serve as 
the public access officer to oversee responses to requests for public records.  Staff is 
recommending Fran Smith be appointed.  A copy of the full text of the law is 
included in your packet.   

(e) Approval of a tax abatement for American Ballroom Dance Academy:  This 
abatement comes at the request of the Assessor, since this company was assessed for 
personal property for the 2011 tax year in error.  A copy of a memo from the 
Assessor is included in your packet. 

(f) Approval of Quitclaim Deed for property known as Map 051 Lot 001 Sub 000 Typ 
131:  This item will deed a property back to its owners as they have paid owed 
taxes.  A copy of the Quitclaim Deed is included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:  
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

 
Executive session – Consultation with legal counsel M.R.S.A. per §405(6)(E) 

Suggested Motion:  
Motion to go into executive session for a Consultation with legal counsel per M.R.S.A. 
§405(6)(E) and to adjourn the meeting at the conclusion of the executive session. 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - A 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 
IN COUNCIL PACKETS 
BUT ON LINE 
 
 



 
 
 

01/02/2013 11:30    |Town of Brunswick |PG     1
jhenze              |DECEMBER 2012 EXPENDITURE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2013 06
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
                                            APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

00 Fill                               
_________________________________________

 
19000 General Fund Transfers Out    1,635,000   1,635,000.00   1,997,250.00            .00            .00    -362,250.00  122.2%

 
TOTAL Fill                       1,635,000   1,635,000.00   1,997,250.00            .00            .00    -362,250.00  122.2%

 
 

10 General Government                 
_________________________________________

 
11000 Administration      443,895     443,895.00     246,072.26      36,416.57         325.00     197,497.74   55.5%
11100 Finance Department      676,347     676,347.00     305,539.70      47,685.48         164.42     370,642.88   45.2%
11150 Technology Services Dept      309,447     309,447.00     183,174.68       7,432.30      13,475.00     112,797.32   63.5%
11200 Municipal Officers      127,615     127,615.00      50,966.45       6,689.01            .00      76,648.55   39.9%
11220 Municipal Building      185,178     185,178.00      68,327.88      14,034.26       1,273.34     115,576.78   37.6%
11230 Risk Management      429,050     429,050.00     148,718.42          60.55            .00     280,331.58   34.7%
11240 Employee benefits            0            .00     -86,966.56     -10,398.85            .00      86,966.56  100.0%
11250 Cable TV       66,983      66,983.00      31,259.77       4,387.60       2,254.67      33,468.56   50.0%
11300 Assessing      279,406     279,406.00     120,722.46      18,402.07       6,647.56     152,035.98   45.6%
11400 Codes Enforcement            0            .00           8.33           8.33            .00          -8.33  100.0%
11600 Town Clerk & Elections      352,539     352,539.00     173,960.23      25,401.42       1,574.50     177,004.27   49.8%
11900 Planning Department      443,416     443,416.00     187,690.00      26,716.68            .00     255,726.00   42.3%
11950 Economic Development Dept       94,751      94,751.00      50,775.81       7,022.19            .00      43,975.19   53.6%

 
TOTAL General Government         3,408,627   3,408,627.00   1,480,249.43     183,857.61      25,714.49   1,902,663.08   44.2%

 
 

20 Public Safety                      
_________________________________________

 
12100 Fire Department    2,944,930   2,944,930.00   1,392,648.89     212,928.77      23,598.71   1,528,682.40   48.1%
12200 Police Department    3,763,288   3,763,288.00   1,689,915.60     260,018.08     139,193.60   1,934,178.80   48.6%
12210 Police Special Detail            0            .00      12,643.95       1,504.19            .00     -12,643.95  100.0%
12220 Emergency Services Dispatc      715,702     715,702.00     336,492.03      48,723.74            .00     379,209.97   47.0%
12310 Streetlights      190,000     190,000.00      89,079.85      17,079.20            .00     100,920.15   46.9%
12320 Traffic Signals       31,600      31,600.00      10,627.54       3,210.80            .00      20,972.46   33.6%
12330 Hydrants      407,770     407,770.00      98,923.90            .00            .00     308,846.10   24.3%
12340 Civil Emergency Preparedne        2,000       2,000.00            .00            .00            .00       2,000.00     .0%

 
TOTAL Public Safety              8,055,290   8,055,290.00   3,630,331.76     543,464.78     162,792.31   4,262,165.93   47.1%

 
 

30 Public Works                       
_________________________________________

 
 
 



 
 
 

01/02/2013 11:30    |Town of Brunswick |PG     2
jhenze              |DECEMBER 2012 EXPENDITURE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2013 06
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
30       Public Works                       APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
13100 Public Works Administratio      412,725     412,725.00     190,398.88      30,727.56            .00     222,326.12   46.1%
13110 PW General Maintenance    1,627,417   1,627,417.00     548,962.18      91,172.14      99,658.81     978,796.01   39.9%
13120 PW Winter Maintenance            0            .00      28,066.43         138.37            .00     -28,066.43  100.0%
13130 Refuse Collection      583,765     583,765.00     213,398.38      44,225.58     217,913.20     152,453.42   73.9%
13140 Recycling      273,792     273,792.00     118,768.34      31,003.50     173,234.00     -18,210.34  106.7%
13150 PW Central Garage      724,623     724,623.00     328,923.84      81,201.54      46,146.11     349,553.05   51.8%

 
TOTAL Public Works               3,622,322   3,622,322.00   1,428,518.05     278,468.69     536,952.12   1,656,851.83   54.3%

 
 

40 Human Services                     
_________________________________________

 
14100 General Assistance      166,695     166,695.00      72,098.24       9,281.50       5,266.55      89,330.21   46.4%
14120 Health & Social Services        2,744       2,744.00       1,379.77       1,379.77            .00       1,364.23   50.3%

 
TOTAL Human Services               169,439     169,439.00      73,478.01      10,661.27       5,266.55      90,694.44   46.5%

 
 

45 Education                          
_________________________________________

 
14500 School Department   33,491,029  33,491,029.00  14,268,406.22   5,179,231.81            .00  19,222,622.78   42.6%

 
TOTAL Education                 33,491,029  33,491,029.00  14,268,406.22   5,179,231.81            .00  19,222,622.78   42.6%

 
 

50 Recreation and Culture             
_________________________________________

 
15000 Recreation Administration      417,915     417,915.00     192,272.39      31,589.65            .00     225,642.61   46.0%
15050 Rec Buildings and Grounds      668,672     668,672.00     333,713.49      54,879.81       9,225.36     325,733.15   51.3%
15300 Teen Center        5,000       5,000.00       5,000.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%
15310 People Plus       75,000      75,000.00      75,607.18            .00            .00        -607.18  100.8%
15400 Curtis Memorial Library    1,192,405   1,192,405.00     588,702.52      98,117.08            .00     603,702.48   49.4%

 
TOTAL Recreation and Culture     2,358,992   2,358,992.00   1,195,295.58     184,586.54       9,225.36   1,154,471.06   51.1%

 
 

60 Intergovernmental                  
_________________________________________

 
16000 County tax    1,183,264   1,183,264.00   1,183,264.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%

 
TOTAL Intergovernmental          1,183,264   1,183,264.00   1,183,264.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%

 
 
 
 



 
 
 

01/02/2013 11:30    |Town of Brunswick |PG     3
jhenze              |DECEMBER 2012 EXPENDITURE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2013 06
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
70       Unclassified                       APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

70 Unclassified                       
_________________________________________

 
17000 Promotion and Development      161,558     161,558.00     128,674.83          10.83            .00      32,883.17   79.6%
17010 Additional School Assistan       10,000      10,000.00            .00            .00            .00      10,000.00     .0%
17020 Cemetery Care        3,000       3,000.00         750.00            .00            .00       2,250.00   25.0%
17030 Wage Adjustment Account       35,000      35,000.00            .00            .00            .00      35,000.00     .0%
17051 Longfellow School Building            0            .00      35,029.80            .00      42,722.05     -77,751.85  100.0%
17052 School Master Plan            0            .00      46,620.11      20,268.50            .00     -46,620.11  100.0%

 
TOTAL Unclassified                 209,558     209,558.00     211,074.74      20,279.33      42,722.05     -44,238.79  121.1%

 
 

80 Debt Service                       
_________________________________________

 
18010 2003 High School Refunding            0            .00     -13,737.50    -945,475.00            .00      13,737.50  100.0%
18020 2006 CIP G/O Bonds      268,000     268,000.00     236,000.00            .00            .00      32,000.00   88.1%
18030 2011 GO CIP Bonds      274,010     274,010.00     323,480.00    -273,920.00            .00     -49,470.00  118.1%
18050 2010 Elementary School Bon            0            .00    -250,328.14  -1,584,998.40            .00     250,328.14  100.0%

 
TOTAL Debt Service                 542,010     542,010.00     295,414.36  -2,804,393.40            .00     246,595.64   54.5%

 
 

GRAND TOTAL   54,675,531  54,675,531.00  25,763,282.15   3,596,156.63     782,672.88  28,129,575.97   48.6%
 

                                           ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Julie Henze **                                           
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

01/02/2013 11:33    |Town of Brunswick |PG     1
jhenze              |DECEMBER 2012 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2013 06
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                   ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

10 Taxes                              
_________________________________________

 
111190 41101  Property Taxes   32,225,201  32,225,201.00  33,178,160.43            .00                   -952,959.43  103.0% 
111190 41103  Deferred Property Tax     -200,000    -200,000.00            .00            .00                   -200,000.00     .0% 
111190 41104  Tax Abatements      -75,000     -75,000.00     -21,020.54      -1,323.54                    -53,979.46   28.0% 
111190 41105  Interest on Taxes       76,000      76,000.00      36,271.85       4,583.26                     39,728.15   47.7% 
111190 41106  Tax Lien Costs Revenu       13,000      13,000.00      12,116.45            .00                        883.55   93.2% 
111190 41107  Tax Lien Interest Rev            0            .00      15,078.55            .00                    -15,078.55  100.0% 
111190 41109  Payment in Lieu of Ta      260,000     260,000.00     133,673.05      65,483.77                    126,326.95   51.4% 
111190 41197  BETE reimbursement      134,838     134,838.00     163,112.00     163,112.00                    -28,274.00  121.0% 
111190 41198  Homestead exemption r      384,439     384,439.00     293,057.00            .00                     91,382.00   76.2% 
111190 41199  Miscellaneous tax adj       -4,842      -4,842.00            .00            .00                     -4,842.00     .0% 
111191 41110  Excise Tax - Auto    2,550,000   2,550,000.00   1,333,062.80     159,894.00                  1,216,937.20   52.3% 
111191 41111  Excise Tax Boat/ATV/S       25,000      25,000.00       3,163.50         244.40                     21,836.50   12.7% 

 
TOTAL Taxes                     35,388,636  35,388,636.00  35,146,675.09     391,993.89                    241,960.91   99.3%

 
TOTAL REVENUES   35,388,636  35,388,636.00  35,146,675.09     391,993.89                    241,960.91

 
20 Licenses & Fees                    
_________________________________________

 
121111 42207  Passport Fees        8,000       8,000.00       2,825.00         550.00                      5,175.00   35.3% 
121111 42208  Postage Fees            0            .00         189.50          37.90                       -189.50  100.0% 
121111 42209  Passport Picture Reve        1,500       1,500.00       1,068.00         156.00                        432.00   71.2% 
121411 42100  Building Permits      100,000     100,000.00      70,504.17       3,254.64                     29,495.83   70.5% 
121411 42101  Electrical Permits       27,000      27,000.00      22,706.25       1,839.78                      4,293.75   84.1% 
121411 42102  Plumbing Permits       12,000      12,000.00       9,540.00       1,117.50                      2,460.00   79.5% 
121411 42103  Zoning Board Fees            0            .00          75.00            .00                        -75.00  100.0% 
121611 42200  Hunting & Fishing Lic        1,000       1,000.00         559.50         181.50                        440.50   56.0% 
121611 42201  Dog License Fee        2,302       2,302.00         980.00         698.00                      1,322.00   42.6% 
121611 42202  Vital Statistics       46,000      46,000.00      26,323.80       3,490.80                     19,676.20   57.2% 
121611 42203  General Licenses       24,230      24,230.00       5,515.00       2,110.00                     18,715.00   22.8% 
121611 42204  Victulars Licenses       22,875      22,875.00       2,325.00         125.00                     20,550.00   10.2% 
121611 42205  Shellfish Licenses       20,250      20,250.00         450.00            .00                     19,800.00    2.2% 
121611 42206  Neutered/Spayed Dog L        4,210       4,210.00       1,788.00       1,310.00                      2,422.00   42.5% 
121611 42208  Postage Fees            0            .00           2.90           2.90                         -2.90  100.0% 
121911 42300  Planning Board Appl F       10,000      10,000.00      24,847.40         800.80                    -14,847.40  248.5% 
122121 42400  Fire Permits          900         900.00         130.00          80.00                        770.00   14.4% 
122221 42500  Conc Weapons Permits          600         600.00         545.00          80.00                         55.00   90.8% 
123131 42600  Public Works Opening          500         500.00          72.00           8.00                        428.00   14.4% 

 
TOTAL Licenses & Fees              281,367     281,367.00     170,446.52      15,842.82                    110,920.48   60.6%

 
TOTAL REVENUES      281,367     281,367.00     170,446.52      15,842.82                    110,920.48

 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=q62fYAfbOaCY8RoA5xtoVSGLruizGR3ZkBkD/s63/tssib51oK8D2IBkbqeD7Aok&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=dAB75YrB9Epx1Ju0dmR9tXckk6GWExuCSf4ufZgws9b6ZWpiu/wC/Lv255Ybq8lF&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=P3fRMCimmPEdF/GmKgactqlkmcFusB5SB0sfY2k9WrmEcx65YagmVfWYiyWNzBXe&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=pxerOOd5Q%2BWFCSG6XHsDNFV4aYi/LgJVvuqLO9Bgf14BfJoKxzJrfLx6Y%2BU4ikAE&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=8%2BsPHtI3rzdT9/H%2Bn22qUWmG2bOg5oInGssvbhPrrXjZKGxgVhMzoSQu3NDO%2B/F/&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=LwqEZ2IA%2BJ9hafN6o09WbnWqsOoYDZgvOd37ivoP0/Lm6dLpPrTEddZcQRVzLQnz&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=qKZ2BLwwJkIdiDJtEqkvn%2BDdGzaFDr%2Blr1e2nrC2nEpUWjH79UklfZGJoZkGnTAi&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=jcB1Ae4T9/YSrQiROnCrGnoqKQB51DCwf62iAIvRHW6fo6KnzqOUS%2BUpVYp6nQq3&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=gmoRNPuKP1cclpZhOJUVngN1lRvF/Z/x5iQp1ucvPSSZU2HMlj1QGSTy2heiTX6/&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=OYkR1rhTFDX01dr8alEuKaWtp0ELtfM005Nl18/4qsZ5WAhgQZTYJ03W7Mi4iUIT&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Lhp54b%2B53q5fAw25ecyhEWoPk5Ge6OQD8Kl62K9P7rdyrZEWWyA0PN48xyziholS&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=qkrkWkqIEKoMhOnRwQ99Fayg2pcEvhzJEj/2Qq98RS%2BI40%2BulZ03qwQ4j/beqY8c&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=pHwzSx96kqADUfFDBeLbnPYY9xmbv/9LuXfZm5kEe%2BI0%2BVR1wtXAPxqtkFEXxFRz&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=3ouv5funRUNd1cWe%2B5LaUg09yI14HygTwDKVX4Ms7Ry/7W2hJ9xXCnFPmg54H3ZU&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=pivJXOjOeRsH9aM33mijhAaEleI4QzcYeqJJLgHqLu38wJjlTku6c5S%2BAvoevzn8&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=nzrZnZ/iiNtvNK4szYRLcMMTG1C%2B8YV7C5qUQwQZ8FtVBFi2YBfooIyqDhbAM3NF&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=7SyuRWu7DNnJfwC%2B8%2BHJwIqegfFI/vEs2f0Mp/DW9y7nmZFJmu4SSU8iKKD0VIAV&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=iIb4npiGyjBo/Ey0IA0X2awHv0lgZRj9enSumCnN7skoGQh4M5N%2BH7ZMt8Y9nxxZ&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=yKOcAURd0GacbClZfpVRw4h05vPLgtqBYZYhFRvOTHhOBWrgNW9C0BNmdCyRr56v&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=V7MIaqRtIdzGWUd5rV0HrOHBGBmGok4kMEZx/XIWVAtpfX6bbWwoKZMM8cmPDF4q&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=4S0bP%2BlxcFaLLRNhc6IR6OYjhOyL8n4DlmBOjrG9AP/nMvfqHA3vgJ3YE4WtkiOh&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=tRW8OPH08uhOiRezIb7htAddWMrZgHych6xBGNbac2LPtrEY0YwLBj1VeTA4LH8C&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=DD7kgeq5U5UMJwzdaNx0Zef%2BeofSGOsyXbiBt8bY2gUhBgNj4k9ivXsRSNoG6qze&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Ql%2BnucbGGuk7I2fFLfj5c6RqSCaEwesq0QIuUqIl7PyGMwm/4zIQ5v4BGNONDm/y&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=TCeLadl41xqCy8%2BDYfqBzBoilZ8U9wZZk6W2jARrWhY7uDErv2TkvNk5%2B3Gfl%2Bkl&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=YSlyHKSL1ZpNZfz14lS0Vde8oER7EbQZAGFMXI4Vqh6RGU3PbN%2BMfcw1WfDCc6rf&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=kodKNKkPt1brUiqYQathdYoSWevnskmvO%2BZNwSuRqrWX2ItjtMdJtna7lTWfkeVq&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=PkbvXKOnYckOeenZy9w45pgjF/vlAztebhP8OG519XnzM/11cDGUX4YBXGYQkoTp&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=VYhmL21OkYWxBEP2eAavFZwhIkgH1U/LYTH2Frgo3C3IDx8iOeG7hzp42M4UN1F6&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=rex2t6LPa9gQU/qFO%2B9xrmGg7h37b5AcwDlXq5vR/xWYa/eIKoAlR7wICpoMxFR6&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=nUN3NnWAOY8WJgN/X/XrTjQ4Ol1YfIcwxYRUVdUTGI8xnmAejt5ZsgVBvt%2BSeKsk&


 
 
 

01/02/2013 11:33    |Town of Brunswick |PG     2
jhenze              |DECEMBER 2012 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2013 06
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                   ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

30 Intergovernmental                  
_________________________________________

 
131122 43505  FD EMPG grant            0            .00       4,105.12            .00                     -4,105.12  100.0% 
131122 43506  FD SAFER grant       20,000      20,000.00       5,417.50            .00                     14,582.50   27.1% 
131132 43103  Highway Grant Fund      215,000     215,000.00     104,272.00            .00                    110,728.00   48.5% 
131142 43104  State General Assista       35,000      35,000.00       6,886.90            .00                     28,113.10   19.7% 
131190 43102  State Tax Exemption R       26,000      26,000.00       5,284.07            .00                     20,715.93   20.3% 
131192 43101  State Revenue Sharing    1,450,000   1,450,000.00     713,717.96      98,964.89                    736,282.04   49.2% 
131192 43105  Emergency Management        4,288       4,288.00            .00            .00                      4,288.00     .0% 
131192 43106  Snowmobile Receipts        1,500       1,500.00            .00            .00                      1,500.00     .0% 
134546 43120  State Education Subsi   10,451,354  10,451,354.00   6,030,344.19     681,047.15                  4,421,009.81   57.7% 
134546 43121  State Adult Educ. Sub       31,000      31,000.00      32,967.59      32,967.59                     -1,967.59  106.3% 
134546 43150  Federal Education Sub            0            .00      76,612.21            .00                    -76,612.21  100.0% 

 
TOTAL Intergovernmental         12,234,142  12,234,142.00   6,979,607.54     812,979.63                  5,254,534.46   57.1%

 
TOTAL REVENUES   12,234,142  12,234,142.00   6,979,607.54     812,979.63                  5,254,534.46

 
40 Charges for services               
_________________________________________

 
141111 44110  Agent Fee Auto Reg       50,000      50,000.00      25,156.00       2,833.00                     24,844.00   50.3% 
141111 44111  Agent Fee Boat/ATV/Sn        1,500       1,500.00         468.00          97.00                      1,032.00   31.2% 
141611 44131  Advertising Fees            0            .00         436.56            .00                       -436.56  100.0% 
142121 44155  Ambulance Service Fee      800,000     800,000.00     500,692.69      86,600.81                    299,307.31   62.6% 
142121 44166  Special Detail - Fire          500         500.00       1,082.64            .00                       -582.64  216.5% 
142221 44161  Witness Fees        3,500       3,500.00       1,800.00            .00                      1,700.00   51.4% 
142221 44162  Police Reports        3,600       3,600.00       1,645.00          46.50                      1,955.00   45.7% 
142221 44163  School Resource Offic       77,424      77,424.00      77,424.00      77,424.00                           .00  100.0% 
142221 44165  Special Detail - Poli        1,000       1,000.00      15,596.50       1,160.00                    -14,596.50 1559.7% 
142221 44167  Dispatch Services fee      135,000     135,000.00      72,883.83      10,609.00                     62,116.17   54.0% 
143431 44175  Recycling Revenue       25,000      25,000.00      12,736.00         858.00                     12,264.00   50.9% 
144545 44100  School Tuition, etc      220,812     220,812.00      12,732.94            .00                    208,079.06    5.8% 

 
TOTAL Charges for services       1,318,336   1,318,336.00     722,654.16     179,628.31                    595,681.84   54.8%

 
TOTAL REVENUES    1,318,336   1,318,336.00     722,654.16     179,628.31                    595,681.84

 
50 Fines & Penalties                  
_________________________________________

 
151621 45103  Unlicensed Dog Fines        6,750       6,750.00         600.00            .00                      6,150.00    8.9% 

 
 
 
 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=jR%2BHzTL4jKoWeHbbYBxaD4aQBKZaCpLiWZ03VFHZvU8MY3/nZwnvD1j7/hYpJCvh&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=E3s6cwmEY6VUI/PHHJE3Vpk%2B9UMViIq96BAgDn3F6jsfwx8E%2B8mYYoh/Y7eVHq7G&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=VUPDQ5et05V8YBzhLGjeV15RpvbuFEZUC0mvgHLZMq0wz2l68IEwGelA8SHyYpdI&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=vd7IkQQhRKjQZ0HRsZjnpPo08o%2BUlOOQF/F1ibZqsxkjiqvTxarGq7iIEjPye8kB&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=9COh0lkWxWYDdta55NS/0%2Bx%2Bq63nsbpjLD868qRGdzQTTveu34ziC%2BoQLwDcrkWi&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=NSv38hx2lcvi1UAi3OWfFxyc3vTR76jSFGeVpm5gOJPB57xV4EMp5UhIOECzuqBp&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=EUVQVrDX%2BGVUY3v90rnH25%2BeDkviv6ZhMSRJzvs1BBP6xmK33qVSWHXPmFziTCUL&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=GY0b57gxx0JsAUeoiCXXxKEF8vItIp8gSuxTfsHSOMSHFLXuTH35P%2BDDcbS1atHA&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=p87pgK3%2BJUXv9UqMINwuJgP6ZioAjQPNueP6NidNTZy/g6QVsoFcIZa9DU6gpp2/&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=2wBnzJsGTT5W0GjxsmUUAxIEzNxCMFSBCegtJO0bnBpUngdjV0onBkIAArM9HYZo&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=cPND3wCAtng3AymsAhrlIaEPZ0xt2cxCru5DjR7lxSUmgzf3TuvZxvtGYmVzLyFe&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=lF9ocucvdvQtQ1DOiEFsD2L7aUqSE3TxCzweZmC7jbOcNMk9NUOlSrAmQ2XbQEio&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=NStiza/BLJdaap73PhdIn%2BzyS4fx9UTEh7JT3QyZm0KXqMFt4msPT4pE6yd5%2BJ%2BI&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=jPLGysEP6Ce9NNGWwtbYBLQeKt7RC9JHwDMl23e55vPv4lWWUFNJ21/E9Z9THNC1&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=EvhDIMXnYvdkfcqXwe%2BFGWH0MhRnAxkSL2lB09IQGJXiHmIVDj7VtDkQCqmkhf8%2B&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=hpQEkfhsxbOYNRgWcJO0m8IhulzeC9vLsREMyWp7eJZHDhle649DmENMKGR9revr&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=uyiHhhp0CMotaugs3V9BiSQ3t/dFoj/250NpgHQ4/ZI0fgZiYernLBxwiuwRVoHV&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=BbrntZvSGjlsEHNsmyJ0MfimyE6V4gNLuGQl1UbtdOsoY3GTVKhDjFAEY%2BXchxQq&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=OR2bl%2BrWiO5tviBLJEqR5Vxyr/EhdHb7X8P58GL7vtClrm4NPnsb0CmXKcJwsQ7f&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=o/DZAg6o4qxbcJh82qi/c49erq29NFR3BBlxkccUl5jdf2iBl1FxaGM/B%2B5%2BbAG/&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=DwfWAiJzh2NcJt53hiEukB%2B8najlNquCkSEakGmq%2BwkMK9JkYLr/souVK3uzTWSG&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=VO%2BZ2YLClB6bYmTFcTK6myJtBAket8h4XmW%2BQbLuYLfj/KpwjByJV9iTOA1Y2bWY&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=wRu3ogxRc0yTR6dHDHk6YE%2BmtzVCupClhWgBMEoRr4eF7IvHSLLRM9e7iZK3T%2BP7&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=baNDam42uJ4kmTw9oxLnEcd0lIT0WEoxLR8n6JcNGx5kXqwAc4GkSK2vs1JmkEnx&


 
 
 

01/02/2013 11:33    |Town of Brunswick |PG     3
jhenze              |DECEMBER 2012 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2013 06
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                   ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
152121 45104  False Alarm Fire        2,000       2,000.00         650.00            .00                      1,350.00   32.5% 
152121 45107  Fire Code Violation F            0            .00         200.00            .00                       -200.00  100.0% 
152221 45100  Ordinance Fines          600         600.00         163.00          30.00                        437.00   27.2% 
152221 45101  Parking Tickets        6,000       6,000.00       9,672.00       1,780.00                     -3,672.00  161.2% 
152221 45102  Leash Law Fines          500         500.00         425.00            .00                         75.00   85.0% 
152221 45105  False Alarm Police          300         300.00         -45.00            .00                        345.00   15.0% 

 
TOTAL Fines & Penalties             16,150      16,150.00      11,665.00       1,810.00                      4,485.00   72.2%

 
TOTAL REVENUES       16,150      16,150.00      11,665.00       1,810.00                      4,485.00

 
60 Interest earned                    
_________________________________________

 
161193 46100  Interest Earned      100,000     100,000.00      10,015.48       1,733.78                     89,984.52   10.0% 

 
TOTAL Interest earned              100,000     100,000.00      10,015.48       1,733.78                     89,984.52   10.0%

 
TOTAL REVENUES      100,000     100,000.00      10,015.48       1,733.78                     89,984.52

 
70 Donations                          
_________________________________________

 
171952 47000  BDC Contrib to Econ D       75,000      75,000.00      75,000.00            .00                           .00  100.0% 
171952 47001  MRRA - Eco Dev positi       50,000      50,000.00      20,830.00       4,166.00                     29,170.00   41.7% 
171952 47002  MRRA - MCOG DUES       15,000      15,000.00      15,208.50            .00                       -208.50  101.4% 

 
TOTAL Donations                    140,000     140,000.00     111,038.50       4,166.00                     28,961.50   79.3%

 
TOTAL REVENUES      140,000     140,000.00     111,038.50       4,166.00                     28,961.50

 
90 Other                              
_________________________________________

 
191111 49000  Finance Miscellaneous        1,000       1,000.00      10,369.72      -1,256.12                     -9,369.72 1037.0% 
191111 49104  Property & Casualty R            0            .00      10,039.00            .00                    -10,039.00  100.0% 
191111 49105  Postage & Handling            0            .00       1,330.00         126.00                     -1,330.00  100.0% 
191111 49106  W/C Proceeds            0            .00       9,053.06            .00                     -9,053.06  100.0% 
191111 49210  Insurance Proceeds            0            .00         420.00      -1,020.00                       -420.00  100.0% 
191192 49100  Cable Television      200,000     200,000.00      54,648.52            .00                    145,351.48   27.3% 
191194 49150  Gen Govt Asset Sales            0            .00         262.00            .00                       -262.00  100.0% 
191611 49000  Town Clerk Miscellane        1,200       1,200.00         630.40          89.90                        569.60   52.5% 
191911 49000  Planning Miscellaneou          200         200.00          78.00           1.00                        122.00   39.0% 
192121 49000  Fire Miscellaneous        9,000       9,000.00      11,334.37       1,255.00                     -2,334.37  125.9% 

 
 
 
 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=a3AbyWb22CweUH7X%2BPC5yMxxcEst/N2gmOpMGpjuqooCea72Qqz4T5Ap3WCjOhTq&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=8oVLtA4IZKTdOe7BhzBiydiXESlz1l5gGsYGBp003yCUMIyGvRyPSQDoT53PUDJ2&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=jjhko7bfPSlNoppzXBd29X8h4Wj//ADzpPYtxHd7TRaHxUkfqjX%2ByTaRpz9P6kMD&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=SGAH5JfpW7xbD3fO8%2BFPQQ%2BS2UzsUPx6d5oKgZFXr4jZD6YGMsqGiQ9mar1kGr46&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=P8WjrWAEsPKjCICiKIk4NHiJnOnxujUET7YOXVSK53lvgcH/jIS2kn7WEYR0gqBM&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=XVt702/ZruOoE38YmpojO19YMNKG4a1gxz3EdTCrExJsbXrH68kcmIoNurA9HhYO&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=tDIoXY7nBgZUvX7capiQzbN3PxkYIcc97jaPnyrRzfVbo5V3OBUQgkaW6UYPg4rT&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=33imWwt//OpO7zsCfF6urON34CgqV3/mvJ2Rzg0FMUSSfCV4teTxoy3wvByy%2BVrk&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=UoH7PUOnVwNgWYlJC19jWc5T%2BBhJZKBQ8E5L8T4dxmlagOOhvV3pg5EfHp3HrQcB&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=ZIkKek8s4eglWz4C0OHCof370msKCwgezoQVUZRyWHCXn90XzmglmEn9jdnkhLhu&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=I0dfix7uTaZfn7KF2Y5EvWZAggk7sKpsQhlwYbzl6NDafgItQzK2Az/hkI2ItjxI&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=htD%2Be7H9K9262BTA/f177VoA5Z5%2BXxq%2B/7/mRG%2BJGi55Fu/yozYsjZRdZHrRfYjC&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=NjUuAEnz3e6OdO4FpnmwAT3NdI3/8q4mbTlqDdxQDj96in46Sfev9c897dT2Qxup&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=vC1JxerxS5Caau8olJM2FBMW2SLrqS8AK2BLztPykb3woGsdIKZzglq1RBWjPMwL&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=SIWROgr%2BtI9ebyVavks8DbOb1SzsIc1RWOrM6O0SZn/E3f%2B8J8ZuCo9Me1crpVl3&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=bmKJsl3GeEpgHEht6QrapXpFEvgw57T3vhz/ceFfM2A4zlUls6PGBRiahrGFahIV&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=up0iBXnK4wxzm1ul9VArNh15NU1HhuVosNN707dhq5ka43FS0UbOIzhEbPBS%2BiiG&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=YM9UoigLW98WCRqwX%2B0QLIgAZCgI%2Bad2hT7fRcPdkJUZJyILbQx/NSOeiHkhParp&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=rEcSMfa3SFt4QgKRwiFZHdWJDhXPXtv0AmKCT9Im1JSLqVrxUVCDuAvwoc9dnSQj&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=wE2rWlNfoup8i/k4Ngq0PQmBdgaMhw2FWfKLlpuc6exHFC5QoV3qzjCc1p5p88lb&


 
 
 

01/02/2013 11:33    |Town of Brunswick |PG     4
jhenze              |DECEMBER 2012 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2013 06
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                   ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
192221 49000  Police Miscellaneous        9,000       9,000.00      11,003.98         262.50                     -2,003.98  122.3% 
192294 49153  Police Vehicle Sales       16,000      16,000.00            .00            .00                     16,000.00     .0% 
193131 49000  Public Works Miscella            0            .00        -845.15            .00                        845.15  100.0% 
194141 49000  Human Services Misc            0            .00           1.00           1.00                         -1.00  100.0% 
194141 49103  General Assistance Re            0            .00       5,928.88            .00                     -5,928.88  100.0% 
194545 49000  School Miscellaneous      174,500     174,500.00     143,758.05      13,437.26                     30,741.95   82.4% 
195051 49000  Recreation Miscellane            0            .00       6,574.94            .00                     -6,574.94  100.0% 
199980 48100  General Fund Transfer      200,000     200,000.00     200,000.00            .00                           .00  100.0% 

 
TOTAL Other                        610,900     610,900.00     464,586.77      12,896.54                    146,313.23   76.0%

 
TOTAL REVENUES      610,900     610,900.00     464,586.77      12,896.54                    146,313.23

 
GRAND TOTAL   50,089,531  50,089,531.00  43,616,689.06   1,421,050.97                  6,472,841.94   87.1%

 
                                           ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Julie Henze **                                           

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Pa11ORGNlyvg0BG1jsZ339vGVyFaos2lvnG%2BgHClqpVUS2AuvqUJXhkuYUdi6RdB&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=6gPNCL9FTvzEi/a/cSwIVpL%2BdF2vGwiASJa6oxdXX%2B8hOmnepIpRfsBVJNupkDMQ&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=IM48/ycPkA5QGc95HFzyH28k09p9aGqea4flrVSW9GzD3ARWWOE8pqEjigHIa8rN&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=ytT5Fg3HSDe5voNNQJnQo/I5fht67qLO/iY21bMnCfdDKs8%2BOGWjUeLymGqXeOTy&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=TyUmmGK4yp2COyjdDYeVrn4WuMlmg%2BL/mU73SIUKblg4z%2Bxy08adm9OJydVT3Bk/&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=DWh854SZ5bfmXUuVojq818V/PJj4h0D3JMlI13LX8cNbpWpk0ueekk0n3gObIKGL&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=3zXzuFwJi3FAcRMaVX1Z0bKnl3Iy46quYzIf6fspqVTIo1uIZjd%2Bnc%2B/XAHkOYRJ&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=pxeR1vCY/aFgaFsXJ0tTgROggIbKMp3JjWBXxSyRiRtcGpHClbsq1%2Brut%2BRJPPcS&


 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - B 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO: Gary Brown 
 Town Manager 
 
FROM: John Eldridge 
 Finance Director 
 
DATE: January 17, 2013 
 
RE: Impact of Governor’s Proposed Budget 
 
As requested, we are working to estimate the impact of the Governor’s state budget proposals.  The 
details of the Governor’s proposals are still being analyzed.  Other than revenue sharing, the following is 
a “best guess” based on what we have seen and what we have discussed with MMA and others. 
 
Municipal Revenue Sharing.  Of the Governor’s many proposals, this appears to have the most drastic 
impact on municipalities, as it would eliminate all revenue sharing for the next two years.  The following 
table shows the amounts we have actually received in the last three fiscal years. 
 

Fiscal Year End State Estimate Actual 
June 30, 2010 $1,873,483 $1,625,720 
June 30, 2011 $1,474,430 $1,539,380 
June 30, 2012 $1,530,185 $1,573,602 

 
As you know, revenue sharing has not been fully funded since FY 09.  In each of the last three fiscal 
years, the state has diverted, to its general fund, a portion of the revenues the law requires be shared with 
municipalities.  It is worth noting that MMA estimates if revenue sharing were fully funded, Brunswick 
would receive $2,147,863 and $2,227,667 in FY 14 and FY 15 respectively.   
 
K-12 Education.  The education funding formula is not available but we understand the Governor’s 
proposal to flat fund education means that the total appropriated statewide will not increase.  However, 
education aid is distributed to local units based on the EPS funding model, meaning that Brunswick’s 
share of the total statewide distribution will be based on factors in that model.  The Governor’s recently 
announced curtailment is estimated to reduce Brunswick’s education aid in the current year by 
approximately $235,565.  It is not entirely clear, but it is assumed that “flat funding” would be after the 
curtailment. 
 
The Governor is also proposing to require that local units, in the aggregate, pay 50% of the “normal” cost 
of teacher retirement.  Each individual school unit’s local cost would be determined by EPS.  The 
“normal” cost is the cost of benefits earned by active members in the current year under the terms of the 
plan.  It does not include the cost of amortizing the unfunded accrued actuarial liability.  For the year 
ended June 30, 2012, the school department reported approximately $15 million in covered payroll for the 
teacher retirement plan.  The “normal” cost for that year was 3.67%, or approximately $550,000.  For the 
same year, Brunswick’s local share of EPS was approximately 59%, which, under the Governor’s 
proposal, would have required an additional $325,000 in local funding.  For the current year, the normal 
cost is 2.65% and the local share under EPS is 61%.  Shortly, we should have a current year covered 
payroll estimate from the school department. 
 



Memo to Gary Brown 
January 17, 2013 
Page 2 
 

O:\Finance\Budget\Budget 2013-14\Governor's Budget Impact on Brunswick 011713.docx 

There are other adjustments proposed in education aid but we are unable to quantify that impact.  
However, the biggest impact in education aid to Brunswick will likely be the result of the continued 
decline in enrollment as enrollment and property valuation are two of the most influential factors in the 
EPS model. 
 
Homestead Exemption.  The Governor proposes to eliminate the exemption for all residents other than 
those that are 65 or older.  On a statewide basis, the exemption costs approximately $24 million.  Under 
the Governor’s proposal, the state expects to reduce the cost to $15 million.  This is a reduction of 37.5%.  
Brunswick’s expected homestead reimbursement in the current year is $382,500.  Assuming Brunswick’s 
demographics are similar to the state as a whole, 37.5% reduction would result in a loss of approximately 
$143,400. 
 
Conversion of BETR to BETE.  The Governor’s proposal would convert personal property eligible for 
BETR to BETE.  Under BETR, the taxpayer is reimbursed for eligible personal property tax payments.  
Under BETE, the property is exempt and the municipality receives at least 50% of the exempt tax 
amount.  We are working to determine the amount of reimbursement the state makes to Brunswick 
personal property taxpayers under BETR.  However, we do know that, this year, the Town expects to 
receive approximately $163,000 under the BETE program.   
 
General Assistance.  The Governor proposes changes to the municipal reimbursement for cost incurred 
in general assistance.  One change eliminates the 90% reimbursement.  Brunswick is not currently eligible 
for the 90% reimbursement.  Brunswick is reimbursed at the rate of 50% of eligible general assistance 
costs.  The second change would cap the state’s general assistance cost, meaning that when the state 
reached the cap, there would be no additional municipal reimbursement.  However, municipalities would 
be allowed to suspend general assistance when the state cap is reached.  We do not believe these 
proposals will have a significant impact on Brunswick.  Perhaps unlikely, but Brunswick could suspend 
its general assistance program should the state reach its reimbursement cap. 
 
State Appropriation of Truck Excise Tax Revenue.  The Governor’s proposal would require 
municipalities to give the state local excise taxes collected on “truck tractors”.  We are still trying to 
determine how many of these vehicles we tax.  Although we do not believe this amount is significant, it 
opens the door to future raids on local excise taxes. 
 
We will continue to work on these estimates as more information becomes available. 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - C 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - D 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 
 

MANAGER’S REPORT - E 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 











 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - F 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - G 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

 
ITEM MANAGER’S REPORT 
- H 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 



 
 

 
ITEM 3 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 









 
 

 
ITEM 4 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 









 
 

 
ITEM 5 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 



 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 
TOWN MANAGERS OFFICE 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
TO:  Brunswick Council    
 
FROM: Gary Brown, Town Manager 
  
DATE:  January 16, 2013    
  
RE: Recommendation regarding changes to Parking Ordinance        
    
 
The proposed changes to the Parking Ordinance include a change to the all-day 
parking in what is commonly known as the Municipal Parking lot. This is found at 
section 15-77(c). 
 
This recommendation originated from my office, based on an assumption that there 
were a significant number of commuters using this lot for all day parking. In light of the 
recent construction of long-term parking at Brunswick Station, the consideration was to 
relocate commuter parking to that lot. 
 
We have subsequently learned that there is only one commuter using the Municipal 
Parking lot. Based on this information, it is the recommendation from the Manager’s 
Office that this section of the proposed changes be withdrawn. 
 
 
  



Excerpt from email from Captain Waltz: 

The changes made do the following: 

o   Create two 30 minute spaces per block in an attempt to free up more spaces on Maine Street for 
customers; 

o   Forbid “space hopping” within spaces in the same block in timed zones – so someone doesn’t use 
two-hour spaces all day by just moving back and forth between nearby spaces; 

o   Makes the ordinance match what currently exists on the face of the earth on Lincoln Street and at 
Bath RD/Maine Street after the reconstructions in 2011-12; 

o   Addresses special requests by: 

  Library for enforcement of 5 minute spaces on Middle Street; 

  Loading zone at Spindleworks on Lincoln Street 

  Neighbor of 76 Pleasant Street concerned with egress near crest of Pleasant Street hill due 
to poor visibility created by parked cars; 

  Request from Bowdoin College for parking on Pine Street near Whittier Field 

o   Increase of fines as suggested by parking committee so they are high enough to matter; 

o   Streamlining of enforcement process – once tickets over $75.00 are outstanding, a letter is sent 
and if tickets are not paid off within 14 days – or an agreement is reached with the PD – the car is 
subject to tow. 

o   Creation of a permit to use the all day parking at Bank Street so its use can be limited to 
residents/employees who live/work in the area between School/ Pleasant to the River and Union to 
Federal.  If accepted, I can create a Gravity Forms plugin to the PD portion of the Town website 
which will allow for easy online application for the permit (fill in a few questions and attach a .pdf 
of a document such as driver’s license, lease, letter from employer or utility bill, etc.) , or people can 
come into the PD and apply in person.  PEO Warner will give them a bright colored paper permit to 
display on their dashboard when they park in the spaces.  

Here’s what I attached: 

A MS Word version of the changes as requested by Town Clerk Smith  with only underlining, 
strikeouts and highlighting in the areas of the changes. 

A copy of the parking fine survey of area municipalities that was used by the parking committee to 
come up with their recommended fines; and 

 A version of the changes with commentary in the area of each change explaining the purpose of the 
change for ease review. 

 



  
 

  Chapter 15 
 

TRAFFIC AND VEHICLES* 
__________  
* Cross References: Animals, Ch. 4; dogs, § 4-26 et seq.; fire prevention and protection, Ch. 7; housing, Ch. 8; vehicles for hire, 
§ 10-96 et seq.; solid waste, Ch. 13; streets, sidewalks and other public places, Ch. 14; zoning and subdivision of land, App. A; traffic 
impact analysis required in certain circumstances, App. A, § 409.3, L; subdivision regulations, App. A, § 501 et seq. 
__________  
 

 Art. I. In General, §§ 15-1--15-25 
 

 Art. II. Traffic-Control Devices, §§ 15-26--15-45 
 

 Art. III. Specific Street Regulations, §§ 15-46--15-70 
 

 Art. IV. Stopping, Standing, Parking, §§ 15-71--15-100 
 

 Art. V. Rules for Operation of Vehicles, §§ 15-101--15-120 
 

 Art. VI. Pedestrians, §§ 15-121--15-140 
 

 Art. VII. Bicycles and Skateboards, §§ 15-141--15-144 
 

  ARTICLE I. 
 

IN GENERAL 
 

… 
 
Sec. 15-8. Parking penalty. 
 

A person who parks a motor vehicle in violation of Article IV Sections 15-71 and 15-73 will be subject to 
a penalty fine of twenty-five dollars ($25.00) ten dollars ($10.00). 
 

Any person who parks a motor vehicle in violation of article IV, section 15-78 will be subject to a penalty 
fine as set forth in Title 30A M.R.S.A., Section 3009, Subsection 1, paragraph D. With the exception of improper 
or failure to display a disability parking placard which will be subject to a penalty fine of ten dollars ($10.00). 
 

Any person who parks a motor vehicle in violation of Article IV Sections 15-76 and 15-77 will be subject 
to a penalty fine of $15.00 for each violation. 
 

• Five dollars ($5.00) for the first violation within a seven (7) consecutive day period. 
• Ten dollars ($10.00) for the second violation within a seven (7) consecutive day period. 
• Fifteen dollars ($15.00) for the third violation within a seven (7) consecutive day period. 
• Twenty-five dollars ($25.00) for the fourth violation within a seven (7) consecutive day period. 
• Thirty dollars ($30.00) each for the fifth or more violation within a seven (7) consecutive day period. 
• Ten dollars ($10.00) for each violation over ten and not more than nineteen (19) in any one calendar year. 

Comment [2P1]: Raises fines for parking in a 
prohibited space from $10.00 to $25.00 

Comment [2P2]: Raises fines for time limit 
violations from $5.00 to $15.00   



• Twenty-five dollars ($25.00) for each violation of twenty (20) or more in one calendar year. 
 

Payments for all violations must be made at the office of the chief of police tax collector’s office. The 
chief of police shall give the violator shall be given a receipt for each payment. and shall send a copy of it to the 
town treasurer. If payment is not made at the office of the chief of police within fourteen (14) seven (7) days after 
the notice of violation, an additional penalty of ten dollars ($10.00) the penalty provided by Article I, section 15-9 
shall be imposed for each outstanding ticket. 
(Ord. of 5-2-88, § 35; Mo. of 1-7-91; Ord. of 9-16-96; Emergency/Regular Ord. of 7-21-97; Ord. of 5-1-00; Ord. 
of 5-31-06(2)) 
 
 
 
 

  ARTICLE IV. 
 

STOPPING, STANDING, PARKING* 
__________  
* Cross References: Streets, sidewalks and other public places, Ch. 14. 
__________  
 
Sec. 15-71. Rules governing stopping and parking.  
 

The following rules govern the stopping and parking of vehicles: 
 

  (1) Prohibited in certain places. Except in compliance with a statute or with this chapter, a person 
shall not stop or park a vehicle on any public way in any of the following places: 

 
  a. On a sidewalk. 
 
  b. In front of a public or private driveway. 
 
  c. Within an intersection. 
 
  d. Within seven (7) feet of a fire hydrant, except as otherwise designated by the chief of 

police. 
 
  e. On a crosswalk. 
 
  f. Alongside or opposite any excavation or obstruction when stopping or parking would 

obstruct traffic. 
 
  g. On the roadway side of any vehicle stopped or parked at the edge or curb of a public way. 
 
  h. On any bridge or other elevated structure or in a tunnel. 
 
  i. At any place where official signs or yellow striped areas or yellow curbing indicates a 

Comment [2P3]: Additional $10.00 penalty for 
each ticket not paid within 14 days of issue.   
Previous “additional penalty only after 7 days, but 
not clearly defined (“up to $100)”) and never 
imposed 



restricted, no-stopping or no-parking area. Except however, on Maine Street, a moped as 
defined by 29-A M.R.S.A. Sec. 101(36) may park in a yellow striped restricted area which 
is not adjacent to a disabled parking stall. No more than one (1) moped may park in a single 
restricted area and any restricted time limit applicable to the section of street still applies. 

 
  j. Within twenty (20) feet of a marked crosswalk. 
 
  k. Within twenty (20) feet of the near corner of the curbs at an intersection unless otherwise 

designated. 
 
  (2) Public ways. A person shall not stop or park a vehicle on any public way except on the right-hand 

side of the way, in the proper direction of travel and with the curbside wheels of the vehicle within 
twelve (12) inches of the edge of the roadway, except upon those streets which have been marked 
or signed for angle parking upon which vehicles shall be parked at the angle to the curb indicated 
by such marks or signs, except that motorcycles will have one (1) wheel within twelve (12) inches 
of the curb. On one-way streets, stopping and parking is permitted on both sides of the street where 
not otherwise prohibited by this chapter. 

 
  (3) Not to obstruct traffic. A person shall not park any vehicle on a public way so as to leave available 

less than ten (10) feet of the width of the roadway for free movement of vehicular traffic. 
 
  (4) Parking within lines. Where parking places are marked by painted lines, a person must park a 

vehicle within the lines. 
 
  (5) Oversize vehicles. A driver of a vehicle having an overall length of twenty (20) feet or more shall 

not stop or park diagonally on any public way, but may park parallel with the curb, where parallel 
parking is permitted, for not more than thirty (30) minutes. 

 
  (6) Parking for certain purposes prohibited. A person shall not park a vehicle on any public way for 

the principal purpose of washing, lubricating or displaying it for sale, or repairing it, except for 
changing tires or making other emergency repairs. 

 
  (7) Owner liable. A person shall not allow any vehicle registered in his name to be parked on any 

public way in violation of this chapter. 
 
  (8) Temporary parking restrictions. When he believes circumstances require it, the chief of police 

may temporarily prohibit the parking of vehicles at the entrance to any place of public assembly 
and install signs so indicating. This restriction remains effective until the need for it no longer 
exists. A person shall not park a vehicle in an area in which parking is temporarily prohibited. 

 
  (9) Interfering with snow removal and/or plowing. A person shall not park a vehicle at any time on any 

public way so as to interfere with plowing or the removal of snow from it by the town. The chief of 
police may remove any such vehicle and place it in a suitable parking space, at the expense of the 
owner. For the purpose of facilitating snow removal, the chief of police may place temporary signs 
along any public way from which the snow is about to be removed, indicating that parking a 
vehicle is prohibited. A person shall not park a vehicle within the area indicated by the signs. 



 
  (10) Abandoned vehicle. 
 
  a. For the purposes of this section, a vehicle parked or stopped on any public way, private 

way or public property, in a time restricted parking zone or designated restricted zone as 
described by Sections 15-71(5), 15-73, 15-76, 15-77, 15-81 and 15-84 and which the police 
have determined has not been moved within a twenty-four (24) hour period, may be 
ordered removed by the police chief or his/her designee, and placed in a suitable location at 
the expense of the owner, after reasonable attempts have been made by the police to 
contact the owner or operator. 

 
  b. For the purposes of this section, a vehicle parked or stopped on any public way, private 

way or public property, other than a time restricted parking zone or designated restricted 
zone as described by Sections 15-71(5), 15-73, 15-76, 15-77, 15-81 and 15-84 and which 
the police have determined has not been moved within a seventy-two (72) hour period, may 
be ordered removed by the police chief or his/her designee, and placed in a suitable 
location at the expense of the owner, after reasonable attempts have been made by the 
police to contact the owner or operator. 

 
  (11) Obstructing certain ways. A person shall not park a vehicle on any public way, private way, alley, 

fire lane, bridge, private drive or private road, in such a way as to obstruct any other public way, 
private way, alley, fire lane, bridge, private drive or private road, unless in the case of a private 
drive or private road the person has permission of the owner of the private drive or private road. 
The chief of police or his designee, at the vehicle owner's expense, may order the immediate 
removal of said vehicle. 

 
  (12) Diagonal parking. A person shall not stop or park a vehicle, excluding motorcycles, on any public 

way in an area designated for diagonal parking with the vehicle facing any direction other than 
with the front of the vehicle facing away from the traveled portion of the public way consistent 
with the diagonal parking markings. 

 
  (13) Permit parking. A person shall not stop or park a vehicle in any town owned or leased parking area 

designated as "parking by permit only" without a proper or valid permit displayed. Any vehicle 
parked in violation will be subject to a fine as defined under section 15-8. The chief of police or his 
designee, at the vehicle owner's expense, may order the immediate removal of said vehicle.  

(Ord. of 5-2-88, § 28(1)--(9); Ord of 8-21-95; Ord. of 5-19-97; Ord. of 9-2-97; Emergency and Regular Ord. of 
3-1-04; Ord. of 12-4-07; Ord. of 1-17-12) 
 
Sec. 15-72. Restricted parking area legend.  
 

Restricted parking areas of any type must be indicated by yellow curbing, yellow striped areas or by 
appropriate signs.  
(Ord. of 5-2-88, § 29; Ord. of 1-17-12) 
 
 
 



Sec. 15-73. Overnight parking restricted. 
 
 (a)  A person shall not park a vehicle on either side of the easterly portion of Maine Street, known as 
Park Row, running from School Street southerly to the Maine Central Railroad tracks, between the hours of 11:00 
p.m. and 5:00 a.m. 
 
 (b)  No person shall park a vehicle in the Mill Street parking lot between the hours of 9:00 p.m. to 5:00 
a.m. 
 
 (c)  No person shall park a vehicle on Maine Street in the parking area which is located north of the 
mall for a distance of one hundred twenty (120) feet, more or less, between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and 5:00 a.m. 
 
 (d)  A person shall not park a vehicle on Maine Street, commencing at Fitch Place and extending 
northerly to School Street, between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and 5:00 a.m. 
 
 (e)  A person shall not park a vehicle on Park Row, east side, commencing at Bath Road and extending 
southerly to College Street between the hours of 1:00 a.m. and 6:00 a.m. 
 
 (f)  A person shall not park a vehicle on South Street, north side, commencing at Coffin Street and 
extending westerly to Maine Street between the hours of 1:00 a.m. and 6:00 a.m. 
 
 (g)  A person shall not park a vehicle on Longfellow Avenue, both sides, commencing at Harpswell 
Road and extending westerly to Maine Street between the hours of 1:00 a.m. and 6:00 a.m. 
 
 (h)  A person shall not park a vehicle on Maine Street, west side, commencing at Noble Street and 
extending southerly to Boody Street between the hours of 1:00 a.m. and 6:00 a.m. 
 
 (i)  A person shall not park a vehicle on Park Row, east side, commencing at Longfellow and 
extending northerly to a point one hundred thirty-five (135) feet north of South Street between the hours of 1:00 
a.m. and 6:00 a.m. 
 
 (j)  A person shall not park a vehicle on Potter Street, south side, commencing at Maine Street and 
extending westerly to Union Street between the hours of 1:00 a.m. and 6:00 a.m.  
(Ord. of 5-2-88, §§ 19, 19B, 28(10); Ord. of 3-21-94, Regular and Emergency Ord. of 11-21-94; Ord. of 
10-18-99(2); Ord. of 9-18-00(1); Ord. of 12-4-07; Ord. of 10-20-08(2)) 
 
Sec. 15-74. No-parking areas.  
 

The following areas are designated as no-parking areas:  
 
Armory Street, west side, commencing at Weymouth Street and extending southerly to end.  
 
Bank Street, both sides.  
 
Baribeau Drive, westerly side, commencing twenty (20) feet north of the entrance of Mallard Pond, to 

twenty (20) feet south of the exit to Mallard Pond.  



 
Basswood Road, east side, commencing two hundred and forty (240) feet south of the intersection of 

Wildwood Drive and extending southerly for sixty (60) feet.  
 
Basswood Road, west side, commencing at Wildwood Drive and extending southerly to Aspen Drive.  
 
Bath Roadi>, both sides, commencing from the Brunswick/West Bath Boundary westerly to a point one 

thousand (1,000) feet past Sawyer Road.  
 
Bath Road, both sides, commencing at Cook's Corner and extending easterly three hundred (300) feet.  
 
Bath Road (Route 24), both sides, commencing at Cook's Corner and extending westerly three hundred 

(300) feet.  
 
Bath Road, north side reverse direction loop located across from the main entrance to Brunswick Naval 

Air Station, both sides, commencing at the east side entrance to the turn around and extending to 
the west side exit.  

 
Bath Road, north side, commencing at Federal Street and extending westerly five hundred eighty (580) 

feet.  
 
Bath Road, south side, commencing at Bowdoin College Campus Drive so-called and extending westerly 

one hundred forty (140) feet.  
 
Bath Road, south side, commencing at Sills Drive and extending westerly forty (40) feet.  
 
Bath Road, south side, commencing at Sills Drive and extending easterly one hundred fifty (150) feet.  
 
Boody Street, both sides, commencing at Maine Street and extending westerly four hundred ten (410) feet 

Monday a.m. through Friday p.m. except holidays.  
 
Bowker Street, south side.  
 
Cedar Street, south side.  
 
Center Street, Both sides.  
 
Church Road, east side, commencing at Pleasant Street and extending southerly to Paul Street, and on the 

westerly side of Church Road commencing at Pleasant Street and extending southerly three 
hundred forty (340) feet.  

 
Cleaveland Street, south side.  
 
Coffin Street, both sides.  
 
College Street, both sides.  



 
Columbus Drive, both sides.  
 
Columbus Drive, east side, commencing at the intersection of Cressey Road and extending southerly one 

hundred twenty (120) feet.  
 
Cressey Road, both sides.  
 
Cumberland Street, north side, commencing at Cushing Street and extending easterly one hundred twenty 

(120) feet.  
 
Cumberland Street, north side, commencing at Cushing Street and extending westerly one hundred thirty 

(130) feet.  
 
Cumberland Street, north side, commencing at Maine Street and extending two hundred twenty (220) feet 

in a westerly direction.  
 
Cumberland Street, north side, commencing at Union Street in an easterly direction sixty-five (65) feet.  
 
Cumberland Street, north side commencing at a point of three hundred twenty-five (325) feet from Maine 

Street and extending westerly one hundred forty (140) feet.  
 
 Cumberland Street, southerly side, from Maine Street to Cushing Street.  
 
Cushing Street, west side, commencing at Pleasant Street and extending northerly one hundred twenty 

(120) feet.  
 
Dunlap Street, south side.  
 
Dunlap Street, north side commencing one hundred forty six (146) feet east of Maine Street for a distance 

of twenty (20) feet in an easterly direction.  
 
Dunning Street, south side.  
 
Elm Street, south side, commencing at Maine Street and extending westerly three hundred seventy (370) 

feet; and on the north side commencing one hundred eighteen (118) feet westerly of Maine Street 
and extending westerly to Union Street.  

 
Everett Street, south side.  
 
Federal Street, west side, commencing at Bath Road and extending northerly one thousand fifty (1,050) 

feet.  
 
Federal Street, west side, commencing at Mason Street and extending southerly to Center Street.  
 
Federal Street, west side, commencing at Center Street to a point three hundred eighty (380) feet 



extending southerly sixteen (16) feet.  
 
Federal Street, west side, commencing at Center Street extending southerly thirty (30) feet.  
 
Federal Street, west side, commencing at School Street extending southerly three hundred seventeen 

(317) feet.  
 
Federal Street, east side, commencing at Bath Road and extending northerly three hundred sixty-five 

(365) feet.  
 
Federal Street, east side, commencing at Jordan Avenue extending northerly to a point four hundred (400) 

feet north of Franklin Street.  
 
Federal Street, east side, commencing at Mason Street and extending southerly one hundred thirteen (113) 

feet.  
 
 Fitch Place, both sides.  
 
Franklin Street, both sides.  
 
Gilman Avenue, north side.  
 
Green Street, both sides.  
 
Grover Lane, north side.  
 
Gurnet Road, (Route 24), both sides, commencing at Cook's Corner and extending southerly nine hundred 

(900) feet.  
 
Gurnet Road (Route 24), east side, within ten (10) feet from the edge of pavement, commencing at Princes 

Point Road and extending southerly to the Gurnet Bridge.  
 
Harding Road, both sides, commencing at Bath Road and extending southerly five hundred (500) feet.  
 
Harpswell Road, east side, commencing at College Street and extending southerly to Bowker Street.  
 
Harpswell Road, west side, commencing at Bath Road and extending southerly forty (40) feet.  
 
Harpswell Road, westerly side, commencing at College Street and extending southerly to Hambleton 

Avenue.  
 
Harriet Beecher Stowe School Access Roadi>, north side, commencing at Spring Street extending 

westerly one hundred (100) feet west of the intersection with Armory Street, except between 2:45 
p.m. and 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday, when parking is permitted from one hundred and ten 
(110) feet west of Spring Street, westerly to Armory Street.  

 



Harriet Beecher Stowe School Access Road Loopi>, north side, commencing at the western intersection 
with the Harriet Beecher Stowe School Access Road easterly to the eastern intersection with the 
Harriet Beecher Stowe School Access Road.  

 
Harriet Beecher Stowe School Access Road Loop, i>south side, commencing at the western intersection 

with the Harriet Beecher Stowe School Access Road easterly forty-eight (48) feet.  
 
High Street, south side, commencing at Union Street and extending westerly one hundred eighty (180) 

feet.  
 
High Street, north side, commencing at Union Street and extending westerly to Cushing Street.  
 
Jordan Avenue, north and south sides, commencing at Federal Street and extending easterly under the 

railroad overpass to Wadsworth Road.  
 
Lincoln Street, north side commencing one hundred ninety (190) (100) feet west of Maine Street and 

extending in a westerly direction to Union Street or a distance of three hundred sixty-seven (367) 
feet from November 15 to April 15.  

 
Lincoln Street, south side commencing at Maine Street and extending westerly for a distance of forty-three 

(43) feet.  
 
Longfellow Avenue, south side, commencing at Maine Street and extending easterly three hundred (300) 

feet.  
 
Longfellow Avenue, north side, commencing at Maine Street and extending easterly one hundred 

seventy-two (172) feet.  
 
Magean Street, north side, commencing at Maine Street and extending westerly one hundred twenty-five 

(125) feet.  
 
Maine Street , west side, commencing at Station Avenue and extending southerly thirty-two (32) feet.  
 
Maine Street, east side, commencing at Bath Road and extending southerly to Longfellow Avenue.  
 
Maine Street, east side, commencing at its intersection with Bath Road and continuing north twenty-five 

(25) feet; 
 
Maine Street, east side, commencing one hundred eighty-five (185) feet north of the intersection with Bath 

Road and continuing north to the intersection with No Name Street; 
 
Maine Street, east side, commencing one hundred (100) feet south of the intersection with the Maine 

Eastern Railroad tracks and continuing north one hundred (100) feet to the Maine Eastern Railroad 
tracks; 

 
Maine Street, east side, commencing at a point ninety (90) feet northerly from School Street and extending 

Comment [2P4]: Bans    parking on north side of 
Lincoln Street because after 2011 reconstruction 
not enough space 

Comment [2P5]: These four Maine Street 
changes all make ordinance match what exists on 
face of the earth after Bath RD/Maine St. 
reconstruction



northerly sixty (60) feet.  
 
Maine Street, east side, commencing at School Street extending southerly ninety-seven (97) feet.  
 
Maine Street, north side, commencing at Pleasant Street and extending southerly one hundred fifty (150) 

feet.  
 
Maine Street, west side, commencing at Potter Street and extending southerly forty six (46) feet.  
 
Maine Street, west side, commencing eighty seven (87) feet southerly of the intersection of Potter Street, 

and extending southerly forty eight (48) feet.  
 
Maine Street, west side, commencing two hundred twenty two (222) feet southerly of the intersection of 

Potter Street, and extending southerly one hundred eighty (180) feet.  
 
Maine Street, west side, commencing one hundred eighty (180) feet southerly of the intersection of Page 

Street, and extending southerly one hundred eighty (180) feet.  
 
Maine Street, west side, commencing at Pleasant Street and extending northerly thirty-five (35) feet.  
 
Maine Street, west side, commencing at McKeen Street and extending southerly one hundred ten (110) 

feet.  
 
Maine Street, west side commencing at the Maine Eastern Railroad tracks  Noble Street and extending 

northerly sixty (60) feet southerly to Potter Street .  
 
Maine Street, west side commencing at Noble Street and extending northerly sixty (60) feet.  
 
Maine Street, westerly side, commencing at Boody Street and extending northerly for a distance of three 

hundred twenty (320) feet.  
 
Maine Street, east side, commencing at the intersection of Whittier Street and extending south to the 

intersection of Atwood Lane.  
 
Maine Street, west side, commencing at Potter Street and extending northerly one hundred thirty (130) 

feet.  
 
Maquoit Road, easterly side, commencing at a point 0.13 miles southerly of the Maquoit Road, Mere Point 

Road, and Maine Street intersection and extending southerly 0.15 miles.  
 
Maquoit Road, both sides commencing at the entrance to the Brunswick High School and extending 

southerly three hundred forty-five (345) feet.  
 
Maquoit Road, both sides commencing at the entrance to the Brunswick High School and extending 

northerly three hundred thirty (330) feet.  
 

Comment [2P6]: These two Maine Street 
changes all make ordinance match what exists on 
face of the earth after Bath RD/Maine St. 
reconstruction 
 



Mason Street, both sides.  
 
Market Lane, south side.  
 
Marriner Road, both sides.  
 
Merryman Lane, west side, commencing on the west side of Merryman Lane twenty (20) feet south of the 

turnaround, thence northerly to the end of Merryman Lane, thence easterly across the end of 
Merryman Lane.  

 
McKeen Street, north side, commencing at Maine Street and extending westerly to a point opposite 21 

McKeen Street.  
 
McKeen Street, north side, commencing at Spring Street and extending westerly five hundred fifty (550) 

feet.  
 
McKeen Street, north side, commencing at Spring Street and extending westerly to Stanwood Street.  
 
McKeen Street, south side, commencing at Spring Street and extending westerly to 63 McKeen Street.  
 
McKeen Street, south side, commencing at Maine Street and extending westerly five hundred twenty-two 

(522) feet.  
 
Middle Street, east side.  
 
Middle Street, west side, commencing at Pleasant Street and extending southerly forty (40) feet, 

commencing at Elm Street and extending southerly to the southerly terminus of Middle Street, and 
commencing at Elm Street and extending northerly three hundred twenty-five (325) feet.  

 
Mill Street, northerly side, between a point opposite Cumberland Street and a point opposite Swett Street.  
 
No Name Street, east side, commencing at Bath Road and continuing northwesterly to Maine Street.  
 
No Name Street, west side, commencing at Bath Road and continuing northwesterly thirty (30) feet.  
 
No Name Street, west side, commencing 115 feet northwesterly of Bath Road and continuing north to 

Maine Street.  
 
Noble Street, north side, commencing at Maine Street and extending westerly fifty (50) feet, and north 

side, commencing at the west side of the curb cut for the driveway to the Inn at Maine Street 
Station and extending in a westerly direction twenty-eight (28) feet.  

 
Noble Street, south side.  
 
Oak Street, north side, commencing at Union Street and extending westerly one hundred ninety (190) feet.  
 

Comment [2P7]: These three No Name St.   
changes all make ordinance match what exists on 
face of the earth after Bath RD/Maine St. 
reconstruction 
 



Oak Street, south side.  
 
Old Bath Roadi>, both sides, commencing from Bridge Road easterly to the Brunswick/Bath Boundary.  
 
Old Bath Road, both sides, commencing at New England Telephone Co., utility pole #148 and extending 

westerly for a distance of six hundred (600) feet to utility pole #152, such starting point being five 
hundred (500) feet, more or less, westerly from the junction of Old Bath Road and Baybridge 
Road.  

 
Page Street, north side commencing at Maine Street and extending westerly thirty-six (36) feet.  
 
Page Street, north side, commencing at Spring Street, and extending easterly forty (40) feet.  
 
Page Street, south side, commencing at Maine Street and extending westerly to Union Street.  
 
Page Street, south side commencing at Union Street, westerly to Spring Street, 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., 

Monday through Friday.  
 
Park Row, east side, commencing at School Street extending southerly to a point one hundred fifty (150) 

feet north of the Cleaveland Street intersection.  
 
Park Row, east side, commencing at Longfellow Avenue and extending southerly to the end of Park Row.  
 
Park Row, east side, commencing at Maine Street and extending southerly ninety (90) feet.  
 
Park Row, east side, commencing one hundred fifty-four (154) feet south of the intersection of Maine 

Street and extending southerly to one hundred twenty-eight (128) feet.  
 
Park Row, west side, commencing at Fitch Place southerly to Longfellow Avenue.  
 
Park Row, west side, commencing at School Street extending southerly forty (40) feet.  
 
Park Row, west side, commencing one hundred fifty (150) feet south of School Street extending to a point 

two hundred (200) feet in a southerly direction.  
 
Pine Street, south side, commencing at Bath Road and extending easterly to Bowker Street, except 

parking is permitted adjacent to Whittier Field between April 15th and November 15th if  the entire 
vehicle is parked off of the pavement.  

 
Pleasant Street, north side, commencing at the west side of the curb cut for the driveway to 76 Pleasant 

Street, continuing westerly for forty (40) feet;  
 
Pleasant Street, north side, commencing at Cushing Street and extending easterly one hundred ten (110) 

feet.  
 
Pleasant Street, commencing at Cushing Street extending westerly for a distance of forty-five (45) feet.  

Comment [2P8]: In response to request from 
Bowodin College to    allow parking next to Whittier 
Field 

Comment [2P9]: To address visibility problem 
leaving dsriveway at crest of hill created by parking 
in this area 



 
 Pleasant Street, south side, commencing at I-95 extending easterly to Spring Street.  
 
Pleasant Street, south side, commencing at Maine Street and extending westerly one hundred twenty 

(120) feet.  
 
Potter Street, north side, commencing at Maine Street and extending westerly one hundred eighty (180) 

feet.  
 
Potter Street, north side commencing at Union Street and extending easterly thirty-six (36) feet.  
 
Potter Street, south side.  
 
River Road, north side, commencing at Pleasant Street and extending westerly four hundred seventy (470) 

feet.  
 
School Street, north side, commencing at Federal Street and extending easterly forty (40) feet.  
 
School Street, south side, commencing at Federal Street and extending easterly to Stetson Street.  
 
School Street, south side, commencing at Maine Street and extending easterly to a point sixty (60) feet 

easterly of Federal Street.  
 
Sills Drive, easterly side, commencing at Bath Road and extending southerly to College Street.  
 
Simpson's Point Road, west side, commencing at mean high water and extending northerly to Pennell 

Way; and the east side, commencing at mean high water and extending northerly one hundred 
forty (140) feet.  

 
South Street, south side.  
 
South Street, north side from Maine Street extending easterly two hundred twenty-four (224) feet.  
 
Spring Streeti>, east side, commencing at McKeen Street extending northerly to forty (40) feet south of 

Page Street, 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, and east side commencing forty (40) 
feet south of Page Street and extending to forty (40) feet north of Page Street.  

 
Spring Streeti>, west side, commencing at McKeen Street extending northerly to Weymouth Street.  
 
Stanwood Street, east side, commencing at Pleasant Street and extending southerly to Hennessey Avenue; 

on the west side, commencing at Pleasant Street and extending southerly to a point seventy-five 
(75) feet northerly of the tracks of the Maine Central Railroad and extending southerly to 
Hennessey Avenue.  

 
Station Avenue, north side, commencing at Maine Street and extending westerly one hundred sixty-four 

(164) feet.  



 
Station Avenue, south side, commencing at Maine Street and extending westerly two hundred fifteen (215) 

feet.  
 
Station Avenue, north side, commencing two hundred thirty-nine (239) feet west of the intersection of 

Maine Street and extending westerly one hundred and eighty-two (182) feet.  
 
Station Avenue, south side, commencing at Union Street and extending easterly forty-five (45) feet.  
 
Station Avenue, south side, commencing one hundred five (105) feet east of Union Street and extending 

easterly one hundred seventy (170) feet.  
 
Station Avenue, north side, commencing at Union Street and extending easterly sixty (60) feet.  
 
Station Avenue, north side, commencing one hundred thirty (130) feet east of the intersection of Union 

Street and extending easterly eighty (80) feet.  
 
Stetson Street, west side.  
 
Swett Street, east side.  
 
Town Hall Place, both sides.  
 
Turner Street, north side, commencing at Webster Street and extending westerly to the end of Turner 

Street.  
 
Union Street, east side, commencing at McKeen Street and extending northerly to Noble Street.  
 
Union Street, west side, commencing at McKeen Street and extending northerly to Weymouth Street.  
 
Union Street, east side, commencing at Station Avenue and extending northerly one hundred twenty-five 

(125) feet.  
 
Union Street, east side, commencing at Station Avenue and extending to Noble Street.  
 
Water Street, both sides.  
 
Webster Street, east side.  
 
Webster Street, west side.  
 
 Connecting ramp, both sides, from U.S. Route 1 to Bath Road, commencing at Cook's Corner and 

extending northerly three hundred (300) feet.  
 
An extension to the Lower Mall, west side, commencing at a point opposite the southerly sideline of 

School Street and extending northerly one hundred (100) feet.  



 
Public way at the First Parish Church, westerly side, from Bath Road to Maine Street.  
 
Two (2) traffic islands, both sides, located in the center of Maine Street at its intersection with Pleasant 

Street.  
(Ord. of 5-2-88, § 18; Ord. of 10-3-88, § 1; Ord. of 6-5-89; Ord. of 10-21-91; Ord. of 10-19-92; Ord. of 3-21-94; 
Emergency/Regular Ord. of 6-20-94; Ord. of 8-7-95; Ord. of 9-18-95; Emergency/Regular Ord. of 11-20-95; Ord. 
of 12-4-95; Ord. of 11-18-96; Ord. of 4-22-97; Emergency/Regular Ord. of 6-16-97; Ord. of 10-6-97; 
Emergency/Regular Ord. of 11-17-97; Ord. of 2-2-98; Ord. of 12-7-98; Ord. of 10-18-99(2); Ord. of 1-18-00(4); 
Ord. of 3-6-00; Ord. of 5-1-00(3); Ord. of 6-5-00(2); Ord. of 9-18-00(2); Ord. of 11-20-00; Emergency/Regular 
Ord. of 2-6-01(2); Ord. of 4-2-01(1); Ord. of 4-2-01(2); Ord. of 4-17-01; Emergency/Regular Ord. of 7-16-01; 
Emergency/Regular Ord. of 12-3-01; Emergency/Regular Ord. of 12-17-01(1); Emergency/Regular Ord. of 
12-17-01(2); Ord. of 2-19-02(1); Emergency/Regular Ord. of 2-19-02(2); Emergency/Regular Ord. of 
2-18-03(2); Emergency/Regular Ord. of 6-7-04(2); Ord. of 3-21-05; Ord. of 12-20-05; Ord. of 1-17-07; Ord. of 
7-21-08(2); Ord. of 9-2-08(2); Ord. of 12-1-08(2); Ord. of 3-23-09(2); Ord. of 10-5-09; Ord. of 7-26-10(2); Ord. 
of 1-24-11; Ord. of 6-20-11(2); Ord. of 1-17-12) 
 
Sec. 15-75. No-parking signs.  
 

No-parking signs must be placed in no-parking areas in such a manner as to be seen and understood by an 
ordinarily observant person.  
(Ord. of 5-2-88, § 19) 
 
Sec. 15-76. Restricted on-street parking areas. 
 
 (a)  A person shall not park a vehicle for more than two (2) consecutive hours in any parking space 
adjacent to a curb, nor in any other parking space adjacent to a curb on the same block, between the hours of 8:00 
a.m. and 6:00 p.m. on any day except Friday, Sunday, and a public holiday and between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 
9:00 p.m. on Friday in the following areas: 
 
 

Bow Street, north side, at 18-26 Bow Street.  
 
Cleaveland Street, north side, from Federal Street to Maine Street.  
 
Cumberland Street, north side, at Maine Street and extending westerly to Union Street.  
 
Cumberland Street, south side commencing thirty (30) feet west of Maine Street, and extending one 

hundred ten (110) feet.  
 
Dunlap Street, north side commencing one hundred ninety (190) feet easterly of Maine Street and 

extending to Federal Street.  
 
Elm Street, north side commencing at Maine Street, and extending westerly one hundred eighteen (118) 

feet.  
 

Comment [2P10]: Make ordinance match what 
exists on face of the earth after Bath RD/Maine St. 
reconstruction 
 

Comment [2P11]: Prohibit space hopping 
within a block and take away limits between 6PM 
and 9PM on Friday nights which are not enforced. 



Federal Street, east side, commencing three hundred sixty-five (365) feet north of Bath Road and 
extending northerly three hundred seventy (370) feet.  

 
Federal Street, east side, commencing at Mason Street and extending southerly to a point opposite Center 

Street.  
 
Federal Street, west side, commencing at School Street and extending northerly to Center Street.  
 
Gilman Avenue, south side, commencing at Maine Street and extending westerly one hundred (100) feet.  
 
Lincoln Street, south side commencing one hundred fifty (150) feet west of Maine Street and extending 

west eighty-five (85) feet.  
 
Lincoln Street, south side commencing one  two hundred fifty (150) eighty (280) feet west of Maine 

Street and extending to Union Street.  
 
 Lincoln Street, north side commencing forty (40) feet west of Maine Street and extending for a distance 

of forty-five (45) feet.  
 
 Lincoln Street, north side commencing one hundred ninety (190) feet west of Maine Street and extending 

for a distance of three hundred sixty-seven (367) feet from April 15 to November 15.  
 
Maine Street, east side, commencing at Route #1 overpass and extending southerly to Bath Road.  
 
Maine Street, west side, commencing at Mill Street and extending southerly to Potter Street.  
 
Middle Street, west side commencing at Pleasant Street and extending southerly two hundred fifty (250) 

feet.  
 
Mill Street, south side, commencing twenty (20) feet west of Maine Street and extending westerly two 

hundred eighty (280) feet.  
 
No Name Street, west side, commencing thirty (30) feet northwest of Bath Road and continuing 

northwesterly forty-five (45) feet. 
 
Park Row, east side, commencing at Cleaveland Street and extending northerly one hundred fifty (150) 

feet.  
 
Park Row, west side commencing at School Street and extending southerly to the "No Name Street".  
 
Pine Street, north side, commencing at Bath Road and extending easterly to Bowker Street.  
 
Pleasant Street, north side, commencing at Union Street and extending easterly to Maine Street.  
 
Pleasant Street, south side, commencing at Union Street and extending easterly to Maine Street.  
 

Comment [2P12]: These two changes move the 
two hour zone around a newly created loading zone 
for Spindleworks 

Comment [2P13]: Make ordinance match what 
exists on face of the earth after Bath RD/Maine St. 
reconstruction 
 



Spring Street, east side, between Page Street and McKeen Street.  
 
Station Avenue, all marked on-street parking spaces, both sides commencing at Maine Street and 

extending westerly to Union Street (excluding the seven (7) parking spaces located in front of the 
Midcoast Federal Credit Union).  

 
Union Street, west side, commencing one hundred fifteen (115) feet southerly of Mill Street and extending 

southerly forty-five (45) feet.  
 
No Name Street, east side from Maine Street to Bath Road.  
 
No Name Street, west side from Maine Street to Cleveland Street extension.  
 
Station Avenue, all marked on-street parking spaces, both sides commencing at Maine Street and 

extending westerly to Union Street (excluding the seven (7) parking spaces located in front of the 
Midcoast Federal Credit Union).  

 
Triangular parcel, all sides, of land situated between southerly end of the lower Mall and the First Parish 

Congregational Church. 
 

 (b)  A person shall not park a vehicle for more than fifteen (15) consecutive minutes in designated 
zones as signed.  
 

Federal Street, east side, commencing four hundred (400) feet north of Franklin Street and extending 
northerly forty (40) feet (two parking spaces). 

 
 (c)  A person shall not park a vehicle for more than three (3) consecutive hours in any parking space 
adjacent to a curb between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. on any day except Friday, Sunday, and a public 
holiday and between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m. on Friday in the following areas:  
 

School Street, north side, commencing at Maine Street and extending easterly to Federal Street.  
 
(d)  Notwithstanding any other provisions of this chapter, a person shall not park a vehicle for more 

than five (5) consecutive minutes in the following signed designated zone:  
 
Middle Street, west side, the three northernmost spaces between Elm Street and Pleasant Street 
 
(e)  Notwithstanding any other provisions of this chapter, a person shall not park a vehicle for more 

than thirty (30) consecutive minutes in the following signed designated zones: 
 
Maine Street, east side, the two northernmost parking spaces (excluding any spaces which designated as 

disability parking spaces) on each block between Gilman Avenue and Town Hall Place; 
 
Maine Street, west side, the two southernmost parking spaces (excluding any spaces which designated as 

disability parking spaces) on each block between School Street and Mason Street; 
(Ord. of 5-2-88, § 28; Mo. of 12-4-89; Ord. of 3-21-94; Emergency/Regular Ord. of 6-20-94; Ord. of 8-7-95; Ord. 

Comment [2P14]: Not a substantive change.   
Section moved up from below so all streets are in 
alphabetical order 

Comment [2P15]: No Name Street and 
Triangular parcel changes to make ordinance match 
what’s on the face of the earth after Bath RD/Maine 
St. reconstruction 

Comment [2P16]: Library has asked for 
enforcement of their three 5‐five minute spaces on 
Middle Street which are routinely used for much 
longer periods 

Comment [2P17]: Creation of two 30‐minute 
spaces per block at request of downtown merchants 
to help open up customer spaces



of 1-18-00(5); Emergency/Regular Ord. of 12-3-01; Ord. of 8-4-03); Ord. of 12-20-05; Ord. of 12-21-05(2); Ord. 
of 5-31-06; Ord. of 10-5-09; Ord. of 1-17-12) 
 
Sec. 15-77. Restricted off-street parking areas. 
 
 (a)  A person shall not park a vehicle for more than two (2) consecutive hours in any town-owned or 
town-leased off-street parking area between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. on any day except Friday, 
Sunday, and a public holiday, and between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m. on Friday. This two-hour 
limitation does not apply to forty-two (42) parking spaces in the Cumberland Street parking lot which are 
established as all-day parking spaces. This two-hour limitation does not apply to the thirty-seven (37) parking 
spaces in the easterly side of the Bank Street parking lot which are established as all-day parking spaces. 
 
 (b)  The parking spaces situated along the easterly line of the Bank Street parking lot are reserved 
without time limitation during normal business hours for the use of employees of the town and visitors to the 
municipal building.  
 

(c)  A person shall not park a vehicle in the thirty-seven (37) parking spaces in the easterly side of the 
Bank Street parking lot which are established as all-day parking spaces unless they have a parking permit issued 
by the Brunswick Police Department displayed on their dashboard.  The permit shall be issued to individuals 
who provide proof which is acceptable to the police department that the individual either resides or works in the 
area bounded on the east by Federal Street, west by Union Street, south by School Street and Pleasant Street and 
on the north by the Androscoggin River.     
 
(Ord. of 5-2-88, § 28(14); Mo. of 5-20-91; Emergency/Regular Ord. of 6-20-94; Emergency/Regular Ord. of 
10-16-95) 
 
Sec. 15-78. Disability parking.  
 

A person shall not park a vehicle in a parking stall on a public way or a town-owned public parking lot 
specifically designated and clearly marked for persons with physical disabilities by the chief of police to be used 
for "Disability Parking Only," unless the vehicle is equipped with a special designating plate or displays placard 
issued by the secretary of state under the provisions of and in compliance with Title 29A M.R.S.A., Section 521.  
A person shall not park in an access aisle adjacent to a disability parking space regardless of whether the person 
has been issued a disability registration plate or removable placard by the State of Maine.  Disability access aisles 
shall be marked by painting on the pavement a rectangular box with white or yellow diagonal stripes. 
(Ord. of 5-2-88, § 19B; Emergency/Regular Ord. of 7-21-97; Ord. of 5-1-00(4); Ord. of 5-31-06(2)) 
 
Sec. 15-79. Loading zones designated.  
 

Loading zones are established at the following locations:  
 
Bath Road, south side, commencing one hundred forty (140) feet east of Maine Street and continuing east 

for eighty (80) feet. 
 
Town Hall Place, south side, a space fifty (50) feet long, at 9 Town Hall Place.  
 
Center Street, north side commencing thirty-five (35) feet west of Federal Street and extending thirty-six 

Comment [2P18]: Designed to reserve the all‐ 
day spaces for people who live/work in the 
immediate area.    In response to commuters who 
park in the lot and then carpool elsewhere. 

Comment [2P19]: Addition of language which 
tracks state law making it clear it is also a disability 
parking violation to park in the wheelchair access 
aisle.   

Comment [2P20]: Adds Maine State Music 
Theatre loading zone created by Bath RD 
construction 



(36) feet in a westerly direction.  
 
Church Road, west side commencing one hundred fifty (150) feet south of the intersection of Pleasant 

Street and extending southerly for a distance of fifty (50) feet.  
 
Lincoln Street, south side commencing at a point of forty-three (43) feet west of Maine Street and 

extending in a westerly direction for a distance of ninety (90) feet.  
 
Lincoln Street, south side, commencing at a point 235 feet west of Maine Street and continuing in a 

westerly direction for forty-five (45) feet.  
 
No Name Street, west side, commencing 75 feet northwesterly of Bath Road and continuing northwesterly 

for forty-five (45) feet. 
 
South Street, south side commencing one hundred ninety (190) feet east of the intersection of Park Row 

and extending easterly for a distance of one hundred and forty-five (145) feet. For a maximum of 
fifteen (15) minutes between the hours of 7:30 a.m. and 6:30 p.m. Monday through Friday.  

 
Station Avenue, south side commencing five hundred thirty-five (535) feet west of the intersection of 

Maine Street and extending westerly sixty (60) feet.  
 
Station Avenue, north side commencing five hundred twenty-six (526) feet west of the intersection of 

Maine Street and extending westerly sixty (60) feet.  
(Ord. of 5-2-88, § 20; Ord. of 3-21-94; Emergency/Regular Ord. of 6-20-94; Ord. of 10-3-94; Emergency/Regular 
Ord. of 6-3-02; Ord. of 8-5-02; Ord. of 9-6-06; Ord. of 10-5-09) 
 
Sec. 15-80. Loading zone signs.  
 

Loading zones shall be indicated by appropriate signs or by parallel lines with diagonal lines running 
between them. All lines shall be six (6) inches wide and shall be painted yellow.  
(Ord. of 5-2-88, § 21) 
 
Sec. 15-81. Restricted use of taxicab stands and bus stops.  
 

A person shall not stop or park a vehicle other than a taxicab in a taxicab stand, nor other than a bus in a 
bus stop. The operator of a passenger vehicle may temporarily stop there while actually engaged in loading or 
unloading passengers as long as it does not interfere with any taxicab or bus entitled to occupy the stand.  
(Ord. of 5-2-88, § 28(12)) 
 
Sec. 15-82. Parking of taxicabs and buses.  
 

A person shall not park a taxicab or a bus on any public way, except at a stand or stop assigned to its owner 
by the town council. A taxicab driver may temporarily stop the taxicab while actually engaged in loading or 
unloading passengers.  
(Ord. of 5-2-88, § 28(11)) 
 

Comment [2P21]: Adds loading zone requested 
by Spindleworks 

Comment [2P22]: Adds First Parish Church   
loading zone created by Bath RD construction 
 



Sec. 15-83. Reserved. 
 Editors Note: An ordinance adopted Sept. 6, 2006 repealed § 15-83 in its entirety. Formerly said section pertained to taxi stand 
designation as enacted by §§ 22 and 23 of an ordinance adopted May 2, 1988; as subsequently amended by an ordinance adopted Oct. 3, 
1994. 
 
Sec. 15-84. Bus stops designated.* 
__________  
* Editors Note: Ord. of 1-17-2012, removed §§ 15-84(a)(2) and 15-84(a)(3) in their entirety. Formerly those sections pertained 
to designated bus stops. 
__________  
 
 (a)  Bus stops are established at the following locations:  
 

Reserved. 
 

 (b)  Bus stops must be indicated by appropriate signs.  
(Ord. of 5-2-88, §§ 24, 25; Ord. of 4-2-01(3); Emergency/Regular Ord. of 6-21-04; Ord. of 5-31-06; Ord. of 
10-5-09; Ord. of 1-17-12) 
 
Sec. 15-85. Parking violations--Towing. 
 
 (1)  Purpose. The purpose of these sections is to improve the enforcement of the Brunswick parking 
ordinances and to discourage habitual violators. 
 
 (2)  Definitions. The following words and terms as used in these sections shall have the meanings 
ascribed thereto, unless the context otherwise indicates: 
 
  a. Towing list means a list maintained by the police department containing the names of those 

wreckers approved by the town to respond to requests for the towing of vehicles made by the 
police department. 

 
  b. Wrecker means a person engaged in the business of, or offering the services of, a vehicle wrecker 

or towing service, whereby motor vehicles are or may be towed or otherwise moved from one 
place to another by the use of a motor vehicle adapted to and designated for that purpose. 

 
  c. Outstanding parking ticket means any notice of violation of any parking ordinance of the Town of 

Brunswick where: 
 
  1. The owner of the offending vehicle has been finally determined to be in violation by reason 

of default or otherwise; and. 
 
  2. The resultant fine or waiver charge established pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. § 3001 and § 

3009, has not been paid. 
 
  d. Waiver charges or charges means the fees a violator may pay to waive court action plus all 

expenses the Town of Brunswick incurs specifically enumerated in this chapter or state law to 
collect fees or fines, including but not limited to certified mail fees. 



 
 (3)  Towing. The Brunswick Police Department is authorized, subject to the requirements of these 
Sections, to remove by use of a wrecker, and impound any vehicle found on any public or private way or public 
property, which has accumulated four (4) or more outstanding parking tickets with or accumulated fines totalling 
fifty dollars ($50.00) seventy-five dollars ($75.00) or more, and is authorized to take whatever action is 
reasonably necessary to carry out the provisions of these sections.  
 

(4)  Notice to owner before towing. After a vehicle has received four (4) or more  outstanding tickets 
with or accumulated fines totalling fifty dollars ($50.00) seventy-five dollars ($75.00) or more or more, a letter 
will be sent by certified mail to the vehicle's registered owner  or operator. This letter alerts the owner of the 
outstanding parking tickets or accumulated fines totalling fifty dollars ($50.00) or more and shall allows thirty 
(30) fourteen (14) days for payment of accumulated fines or waiver charges. After this time period has transpired 
without either payment in full or an no arrangement acceptable to the chief of police having been made to pay the 
fines or waiver charges, a certified letter, return-receipt requested, will be sent to the owner or operator allowing 
seven (7) calendar days for payment of the fines or waiver charges or the vehicle will be subject to tow.  
 
 (5)  Procedure for towing and impoundment. Any police officer ordering towing and impoundment of 
a vehicle under these sections shall, at the time of such towing and impounding, or within a reasonable time 
thereafter, notify the dispatcher of the storage location of the vehicle. Such information shall be recorded by the 
dispatcher for use by the chief of police, or his/her authorized representative. The chief of police, or his/her 
authorized representative shall notify the owner or operator by certified mail, return receipt requested, of the 
towing and impoundment of the vehicle within five (5) business days of the towing and impoundment thereof, the 
storage location of such vehicle, and the requirements of release as set forth in section 15-85(6). This section shall 
not apply where an impounded vehicle has been released within the five-day period. 
 
 (6)  Release of vehicles. The vehicle shall not be released until: 
 
  a. The individual requesting the release presents satisfactory evidence of his/her right to possession 

and signs a receipt therefore; and, 
 
  b. The chief of police, or his/her authorized representative, certifies that all fines or waiver fees 

described in this chapter, including the fees for towing and impoundment have been paid; or, 
 
  c. Upon the certification by the chief of police, or his/her authorized representative, that the owner or 

operator is unable to pay accumulated fines or waiver charges by reason of poverty, having 
provided satisfactory proof of such status, and that such owner or operator has accepted a 
summons initiating a court proceeding to determine his/her liability for the alleged violations. 

 
 (7)  Towing conditions. Once a police officer has ordered towing, one (1) of three (3) following 
possibilities exist: 
 
  a. If the towing truck is enroute to the scene but has not yet arrived, and the owner or operator has 

arrived, or if they arrive approximately the same time, then the owner or operator must pay the 
wrecker, on arrival, in the amount of one-half ( 1/2) of the towing charge and must pay to the chief 
of police, or his/her authorized representative, all fines or waiver charges to effect the on-the-scene 
release of the vehicle. 

Comment [2P23]: Increases limit before a car is 
subject to tow to account for increased fines 

Comment [2P24]: Simplifies procedure prior to 
tow.    One notice by certified mail to registered 
owner.    Car will be towed if outstanding tickets not 
paid within 14 days – unless a payment agreement 
made with chief of police. .



 
  b. If the wrecker has secured the vehicle before the owner or operator arrives, the owner or operator 

must pay the wrecker, on arrival, all the towing charges and must pay the chief of police, or his/her 
authorized representative, all fines or waiver charges to effect the on-the-scene release of the 
vehicle. 

 
  c. If the vehicle is actually towed away for impoundment, the vehicle owner or operator must pay the 

wrecker all towing and storage charges and must pay the chief of police, or his/her authorized 
representative, all fines and waiver charges, in order to gain release of the vehicle. 

 
 (8)  Interference with enforcement. It shall be a violation of these sections for any person to obstruct or 
attempt to prevent the removal of a vehicle as provided in these sections. The penalty for such violation shall not 
be less than fifty dollars ($50.00) nor more than one thousand dollars ($1,000.00). 
 

(9)  Hearings. The owner or operator of a towed and impounded vehicle may request a hearing on the 
applicability of these sections to the towing and impoundment. Such hearing shall be scheduled at the earliest 
possible date and be conducted by the Commander of the Patrol Division captain of operations. Decisions of the 
Commander of Patrol captain of operations shall be appealable to the chief of police.  
 (Ord. of 8-21-95) 
 
Secs. 15-86--15-100. Reserved. 
 

Comment [2P25]: Titles updated to reflect 2011 
police department reorganization. 



Violation Brunswick Bath Freeport Lisbon Portland Bowdoin College

Overtime Parking $5/$10/$15/$25/$30 - w/in 7 day period* Warn/$20/$25/$30/35/$40  - w/in 6 mo period^ $30.00 $30.00 $15.00

Parked on Crosswalk $10.00 $25.00 $30.00 $30.00 $30.00

Parked on Sidewalk $10.00 $25.00 $30.00 $30.00 $25.00

Obstructing Driveway $10.00 $50.00 $30.00 $30.00 $25.00

Restricted Place $10.00 $15.00 $30.00 $30.00 $25.00 $25.00

Double Parking $10.00 $15.00 $30.00 $30.00 $25.00

All Night Parking $10.00 $15.00 $30.00 $30.00 $15.00

Disability Parking $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $150.00 $200.00 $200.00

Parked Against Traffic Flow $10.00 $5.00 $30.00 $30.00 $25.00

Comparison of Area Parking Fines (as of 11/2/12)

Notes: 
*Brunswick also provides for $10.00 fine if a person has 10-19 violations in a year and a $25 fine if a person has more than 20 violations in a year. 
^ Bath overtime fines cited are for their business district.  No warning oustide of business district.   



 
 

 
ITEM 6 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 





 
 

 
ITEM 7 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 



 
 

 
ITEM 8 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 







 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - A 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



Draft  
Brunswick Town Council Minutes 

Inauguration 
January 7, 2013 

 
Councilors Present: Chair Suzan Wilson, W. David Watson, Benjamin J. Tucker, John M. Perreault, 

Gerald E. Favreau, Margo H. Knight, Sarah E. Brayman, and John Richardson, Jr. 
 
Councilors Absent: Councilor Benet Pols  
 
School Board Members Present: Richard P. Ellis, Brenda D. Clough, Christopher J. McCarthy, Corinne 

A. Perreault, James S. Grant, Janet C. Connors, Michele M. Joyce, Joy 
Y. Prescott, and William H. Thompson  

 
Town Staff Present: Gary Brown, Town Manager; Fran Smith, Town Clerk/Assistant to the Town 

Manager; Elin M. Gould, Deputy Town Clerk; Paul Perzanoski, Superintendent of 
Schools; Greg Bartlett, Assistant Superintendent of Schools; Tom Farrell, Director of 
Parks and Recreation; John Foster, Public Works Director; Cathy Donovan, Assessor; 
Anna Breinich, Director of Planning and Development; John Eldridge, Finance 
Director; Richard Rizzo, Police Chief; Don Koslosky, Deputy Fire Chief; Jeremy 
Doxsee, Town Planner; Linda Stromski, Assistant Town Clerk; and TV video crew 

 
Councilors-Elect Sworn to Office:  Town Clerk Fran Smith led the oath for the following 

Town Councilors: Suzan Wilson, John M. Perreault, and 
John Richardson, Jr. 

 
School Board Members-Elect Sworn to Office:   Town Clerk Fran Smith led the oath for the following 

School Board members: Christopher J. McCarthy, 
Corinne A. Perreault, and Joy Y. Prescott 

 
Town Clerk Fran Smith opened the Organizational meeting and conducted roll call. 
 
1. Elections and Appointments 

a. Election of Council Chair. 
 
Fran Smith, Town Clerk, asked for nominations for Council Chair. 
 
Councilor Watson nominated Councilor Wilson.  
 
Hearing no other nominations, Ms. Smith closed the nominations and called for a vote of the Council. 
 
The Council voted eight (8) yeas to elect Councilor Wilson as the 2013 Brunswick Town Council 
Chair.  
 

b. Election of Council Vice Chair. 
 
Chair Wilson opened the floor for nominations for Vice Chair.   
 
Councilor Tucker nominated Councilor Knight. 
 
Hearing no other nominations, Chair Wilson closed the nominations and called for a vote of the Council. 
 
The Council voted eight (8) yeas to elect Councilor Knight as the 2013 Brunswick Town Council Vice 
Chair.  



Town Council Minutes 
January 7, 2013 
Page 2 
 
 

c. The Town Council will appoint the Town Attorney. 
 
Councilor Favreau moved, Councilor Tucker seconded, to appoint the firm of Bernstein Shur as the 
Town Attorney for 2013.  The motion carried with seven (7) yeas.  Councilor Perreault abstained from 
the vote since he does construction work for the attorney.  
 

d. The Town Council will appoint Council Representatives to the following: 
 
Chair Wilson made the following appointments: 
 

i.       Appointment Sub-committee (previously Brayman, Watson, and Favreau) 
 
Councilor Brayman, Councilor Watson and Councilor Tucker will serve on this committee. 
 

ii. Brunswick Development Corporation (previously King and Wilson) 
 
Chair Wilson and Councilor Richardson will serve on this committee. 
 

iii. Cable Television Committee (previously Watson) 
 
Councilor Watson will serve on this committee. 
 

iv.   Recycling & Sustainability Committee (previously Brayman) 
 
Councilor Brayman will serve on this committee. 
 

v. Trust Fund Advisory Committee (previously Pols)  
 
No appointment was made to this committee. 
 

vi. Mid-Coast Council of Governments -5 Councilors needed  
 

No appointments were made to this committee. 
 

vii. Union Negotiating Committee -1 Councilor needed for each (previously Perreault – 
AFSCME, Favreau –Police and Communications, Wilson - Public Works)  

 
Councilor Favreau will serve on this committee for Police and Communications Unions.  No other 
appointments were made. 

 
viii. Citizens Initiative Clarity Board (previously Pols and Knight) 

 
No appointments were made to this committee. 

 
ix. Marine Resource Committee (previously Wilson) 

 
Chair Wilson will serve on this committee. 

 



Town Council Minutes 
January 7, 2013 
Page 3 
 

x. Brunswick Teen Board 
 

Councilor Favreau will serve on this committee. 
 

2. The Town Council will set the meeting dates for the second Council meeting in January, February, 
and April; and for the first Council meeting in July and September, as follows:  
 

Monday, January 21st is Martin Luther King Day (Council to meet on Tuesday, January 
22, 2013).  

 Monday, February 18th is President’s Day and school vacation week (Council to meet on 
Tuesday, February 19, 2013). 

 Monday, April 15th is Patriot’s Day and school vacation week (Council to meet on Monday, 
April 22, 2013). 

 Thursday, July 4th is the legal holiday and popular vacation week.  (Council to meet on 
Monday, July 8, 2013, for the first meeting and Monday, July 22, 2013, for the second 
meeting) 

 No proposed meeting for August 
 Monday, September 2nd is Labor Day (Council to meet on Tuesday, September 3, 2013). 

 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Tucker seconded, to adopt the meeting schedule as outlined 
above.   
 
AMENDMENT TO MOTION 
 
Councilor Brayman moved, Councilor Perreault seconded, to amend the motion to include a meeting 
in August. 
 
VOTE ON AMENDMENT  
Councilor Brayman moved, Councilor Perreault seconded, to amend the motion to include a meeting 
in August.  The motion carried six (6) yeas.  Councilor Tucker and Chair Wilson were opposed. 
 
 
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION WITH AMENDMENT 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Tucker seconded, to adopt the meeting schedule as outlined 
above with the addition of a meeting in August.  The motion carried with eight (8) yeas.   
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Favreau seconded, to adjourn the meeting.  The motion carried 
with eight (8) yeas. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:25 p.m. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  THESE MINUTES ARE ACTION MINUTES.  THE ENTIRE MEETING CAN BE 
VIEWED AT WWW.BRUNSWICKME.ORG.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



Town Council Minutes 
January 7, 2013 
Page 4 
 
 
 
Fran Smith 
Town Clerk/Assistant to the Town Manager 
January 9, 2012 
 

January 22, 2013 
Date of Approval 

 

___________________________ 
Council Chair 

 
 



 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - B 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



Draft 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Minutes 
December 17, 2012 

 
Councilors Present: Chair Joanne T. King, W. David Watson, Benjamin J. Tucker, Suzan 

Wilson, John M. Perreault, Gerald E. Favreau, Margo H. Knight, Sarah 
E. Brayman, and Benet Pols. 

 
Councilors Absent: None 
 
Town Staff Present: Gary Brown, Town Manager; Fran Smith, Town Clerk/Assistant to the 

Town Manager; Tom Farrell, Director of Parks and Recreation; 
Richard Rizzo, Police Chief; Anna Breinich, Director of Planning and 
Development; John Eldridge, Finance Director; Denise Clavette, 
Business Development Manager; Marc Hagan, Deputy Police Chief; 
Mark Waltz, Police Captain; Russ Wrede, Police Sergeant and TV 
video crew.   

 
Chair King called the meeting to order, led the Pledge of Allegiance and asked the Town 
Clerk for roll call. 
 
Chair King asked for a moment of silence for victims of the Newtown, Connecticut school 
shooting. 
 
Public Comment: (Public Comments were taken after agenda items) 
 
Dick Moll, Water Street, representing the Water Street Association, expressed concerns about 
the possibility of the school bus garage being located on the old Times Record property. 
 
Bill Coop, 15 Meadowbrook Road, spoke regarding Citizens United and asking the Council 
to support a resolution in opposition to corporate spending. 
 
Several people thanked Chair King for her work and presented her with gifts - 
 
Mike Feldman on behalf of People Plus/Teen Center 
Claudia Knox and David Knight on behalf of Brunswick Downtown Association 
Jean Powers, 40 Redwood Lane 
Katy Longley, on behalf of Bowdoin College 
Don Gerrish, 10 Algonquin Lane and former town manager 
Stacy Frizzle on behalf of People Plus 
Douglas Lavallee, owner of Scarlet Begonias 
 
Councilor Tucker, Chief Rizzo and Manager Brown presented Chair King with plaques for 
her service. 
 
Chair King spoke about her service. 
 
Correspondence:  none 
 
Adjustments to the Agenda:  None 
  



Town Council Minutes 
December 17, 2012 
Page 2 
 

 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
(a) Council Committee Updates  
 
Reports were given on the following Committees: Master Plan Implementation Committee 
and CIP committee. 
 
(b) Update on the Police Station Project 
 
Manager Brown gave this update and responded to questions from Councilor Pols and 
Councilor Perreault. 
 
(c) Holiday Schedule 
 
Manager Brown gave this report. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
131. The Town Council will hear public comments on an amendment to the Town 

Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 2, Section 216, relating to the review of demolitions 
in the Village Review Overlay Zone, and will take any appropriate action.  
(Manager) 

 
Manager Brown gave this update. 
 
Chair King spoke on this item and opened the public hearing. 
 
Charles Wiercinski, 2 Chebeague Lane, spoke on this item. 
 
Chair King closed the public hearing. 
 
The following Councilors spoke and/or asked questions regarding this item: 
 
Councilor Pols 
Councilor Perreault  
Councilor Brayman  
Councilor Watson  
Councilor Favreau  
 
Questions were answered either by staff or Charles Frizzle, Chair of Planning Board. 
 
Emily Swan, Village Review Board Chair, spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Tucker moved, Councilor Wilson seconded, to adopt an amendment to the 
Town Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 2, Section 216, relating to the review of demolitions in 



Town Council Minutes 
December 17, 2012 
Page 3 
 

 
 

the Village Review Overlay Zone, said amendment being in effect until June 1, 2103.  
The motion carried with eight (8) yeas.  Councilor Pols was opposed. 
 
(A copy of a memo from the Planning Department and the approved amendment will be 
attached to the official minutes.) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
132. The Town Council will consider setting a public hearing for January 22, 2013, on 

parking ordinance changes in the downtown area, as recommended by the 
Downtown Master Plan Implementation Committee’s Parking Subcommittee, 
and will take any appropriate action.  (Councilor Knight and Councilor 
Perreault) 

 
Councilor Knight spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Pols asked a question, to which Councilor Knight responded. 
 
Councilor Favreau and Councilor Perreault spoke. 
 
Councilor Tucker moved, Councilor Wilson seconded, to set a public hearing for 
January 22, 2013, on parking ordinance changes in the downtown area, as 
recommended by the Downtown Master Plan Implementation Committee’s Parking 
Subcommittee.  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
133. The Town Council will consider adopting a new Boards, Commissions and 

Committees Policy, and will take any appropriate action. (Appointments 
Committee) 

 
Councilor Watson spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Favreau moved, Councilor Tucker seconded to table this item until January 
22, 2013.  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

(a) Approval of the Minutes of December 3, 2012 
(b) Approval of the Minutes of December 6, 2012 
(c) Approval of games of chance for Brunswick Lodge of ELKS #2043 

 
Councilor Tucker moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to approve the Consent Agenda.  
The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the letter for CA-C will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Tucker seconded, to adjourn the meeting. The 
motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 



Town Council Minutes 
December 17, 2012 
Page 4 
 

 
 

The meeting adjourned at 8:25 p.m. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  THESE MINUTES ARE ACTION MINUTES.  THE ENTIRE 
MEETING CAN BE VIEWED AT WWW.BRUNSWICKME.ORG.  
 
 
 
Frances M. Smith 
Town Clerk/Assistant to the Town Manager 
December 19, 2012 
 

January 22, 2013 
Date of Approval 

 

___________________________ 
Council Chair  

 



 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - C 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - D 
BACK UP MATERIALS 



















 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - E 
BACK UP MATERIALS 





 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA -F 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 




	mr a on line only
	mr b yes
	mr c no
	mr d no
	mr e yes
	mr e TC Memo_Brunswick Constructive Possession_REC-1.2.3.4.5.7_01.14.13
	mr e Town_Parcels_Constructive Possession_01142013
	mr f no
	mr g no
	3 yes
	3 little
	4 yes
	4 elkd_
	5 parking downtown complete
	5 January 16 memo regarding parking ordinance changes.pdf
	TOWN OF BRUNSWICK


	6 yes
	6MRRA app ltr to Gov_20130116091035
	7 no
	8 yes
	8 2012 bouchard j water_20121218150444
	ca a yes
	ca a Jan 7 13 ing min
	ca b yes
	ca b dec 17 2012 min
	ca c yes
	ca c abatemnt_20121128103234
	ca d yes
	ca d freedom
	ca e yes
	ca e ballroom
	ca f yes
	ca f quitclaim



